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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high
investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track
record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be
risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website
operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liabilities whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Town Health International Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and
are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

ERBEXZMARIA (BXF]) AIERTS (TRIXER]) 28&

BERDATESREBARZAARM—ELT 2T S - AHEMERLTZAABARBEERNTCE
FEHARFARMRFGBH - b ERAXERETZARAJEEHBERERZSARAKEER 2 TEIBRMS
R ERREZATETHRENZSEQAAZELRAR  YIRKBEHAAFXZEZRASTFHRERE -
AERZBEERKEMBERTAXREBEAEXERAMERRES -

HRAERETZATDBHEAMNE  ERARKREECESTHERAEBXTEIREEZEFAZIBAZT
BRBER AREIRELEAXRNEEZZSTASABEZTS -

AIERBRMERNCTESTEREBRXMAAERMR2EBAPRELTE - LT AABEAEEREERE
HEARAMHEER Bl BEREZATEEIE  HEAMBEAERAEwww.hkgem.com » F 7
MERAXERLETRTAZRHER -

BXEAREZABHMTEE  HHEEM R BT T ERTWEN - WHABRTHTRELNF S
BB A ] B 10 0 B 1T BE A B R 1 RE A% 5 B T 51 B2 (E ] IR K AR JE (] B AE -

A& T BB CBIEREZ ETAER ([BIFR LT A 894 E i e 75 B 12 BIBR 2 R B IR 22 7]
([FRA)Z2EH - ARAZEE([EF]) BHRAREFEEEEZEEME  LEEH G EEHRE
R IR ERHEHE - (VA BERBEENEEEXNL A EERTE - AEREK Y - (2) N & E
ERAMERERRALNMHBEMNATELRE  RO)AREANFTREZ —EEIEFREFERELR
TTEX WARNFEEZEERBRRBEKIE -



Town Health
International Holdings Company Limited

EREBRERERLT

Corporate Information Consolidated Income Statement

DEER mEWER

Chairman’s Statement Consolidated Balance Sheet

ERRE SEEEAER

Management Discussion and Analysis Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EEENWEDN ReRmfEX

Board of Directors Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BExg GEBHERER

Corporate Governance Report Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TEERBREE REMBHRRHE

Directors’ Report 128 Financial Summary

EXEHEE MERE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BURBMRES

i LA

|.I ) | |""I ..' 'il II“ I||

s ’ﬂﬂ;rL... {g
| | "'ij I|||,J | r‘.u ..||'

i .||,|II| |.I,,.r LY fm h .

1| || | r |-1| ||Ilib‘l .'I| \ ﬁll |||[ rlli

il

|I“ Jhis “ | .|.
I| 3'"-1“" i

i

I-h

A 'ii'-". AT AR

[ '. III _Il
SO



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Corporate Information

DNEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Miss Choi Ka Yee, Crystal (Chairman)

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JrP
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED

ACCOUNTANT:

Mr. Mak Yau Hing CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACS
(Resigned on 25th June, 2007)

Mr. Wong Seung Ming CPA, FCCA
(Appointed on 25th June, 2007)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER:
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu (Chairman)
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, Jp (Chairman)
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu

Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

AUDITORS:

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

BITES:

gmia/hE (FE)
BETEL (TTHAAR)
HREEE
EEHEAL

FYITES
BEABL  AF@mt

BUFHITES:
R 8 E &
EEM - A Fmr
] Bl ZE &

REAMEREERSEA

24 B % = CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACS
(R=ZFFLFNAZ+ A BT

T 5 # 55 4 CPA, FCCA

(R-ZFZE+LFNA-FTHAZE)

EEXE:

EEFEL

BREREE:
&8 EE (F/F)
EEM - AFHL
B E L L

FWEES :

BRI - xF#+ (EE)
TETEL
R 81 5% &
EIEES S

REAR:
BEETEL
BREEE

ELED

BY « BERS G 1T
B B D



Corporate Information

DNEER

PRINCIPAL BANKERS:

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE:

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE:

Tengis Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE:

Ugland House
P.O. Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands
British West Indies

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS:

Shop 37, Level 3,

Hilton Plaza Commercial Centre,
3-9 Shatin Centre Street,
Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE:
8138

FEERRT
EELBESRITARAA
BAERTERAA
hERTT (FE) ARLQA
RFIBITHERAA
ERRTT (BB ARAQF

TERDBFERE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

EEROBFETIE :

ERENERAA
BB

2 REFR28%
& 5E B A D
2612

AMMERE

Ugland House
P.O. Box 309
George Town
Grand Cayman
Cayman lIslands
British West Indies

BIREE R T ELE T
BB

AL H

7> H IE A7 3-95%

7 HTE A D

3% 3755 4

LHERE
8138

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

On behalf of Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
(“Town Health” or the “Company”), | am pleased to present this
annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2007 (the “Year”)
to our shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the 2006-07 fiscal year, Town Health has achieved robust
results and set new record high in both turnover and earnings
performance since its listing on the Stock Exchange. In addition,
the Company has established the largest medical and healthcare
network in Hong Kong. With more than eighty clinics throughout
Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and the New Territories, the
Company is now providing services to more than 700,000
patients. The Company has already become the largest private
medical service group equipped with the most complete and
advanced facilities and become the best alternative of medical
services other than public medical service institutions.

During the Year, the Company continued to register a robust
increase of approximately 19% in turnover compared to last year.
With the gradual recovery of Hong Kong’s economy and
consequent increasing personal income, local citizens’ average
spending in healthcare services has also increased, which
contributes to a horizontal growth in the Company’s business.
During the Year, Town Health has established a dental specialty
center covering 5,000 sq. ft. in Jordan, Kowloon. Meanwhile, the
Company also holds the convertible bonds of Hong Kong Health
Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited, one of the
largest medical service companies with the most advanced
medical diagnoses equipment in Hong Kong. In addition, the
Company is proactively exploring business opportunities in the
medical beauty business sector, which further strengthened its
service role at the established hair-planting centre. Diversification
of medical-related business is one of the key drivers for the
Company’s success in its operations.

Our profits significantly surged 10.7 times, amounting to
HK$214,850,000 in the period. Since the Company has
experienced rapid expansion in its scale of operations and with
the increase of clinics sharing medical resources, the economy
of scale enhanced correspondingly. Together with the
implementation of cost control strategies, profit for the year has
increased significantly. Meanwhile, the Company continued to
develop medical-related business with higher profit margin, which
also contributed to the multiple times increase in profit for the
year.
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Chairman’s Statement
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FUTURE PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the Company will capitalize on solidifying the
existing business foundation and target to set new height. For
its core medical diagnostic services, the Company will focus on
its development and continue to open new clinics in appropriate
locations of Hong Kong, expand its medical service network, as
well as acquire other well-known medical diagnostic group, in
order to secure the market share of its core business.

As men in cosmopolitan are increasingly conscious of their self-
image, and together with a record upwards trend in men’s disease
such as prostate disease, the Company sees the need to
establish a healthcare service center for men with systemized
and with complete systematic equipment that provides male
patients with all-in-one healthcare service.

As domestic economy sustains its dynamic growth, and with
Chinese people becoming more health conscious, the developing
momentum of China’s medical care market will be tremendous.
According to the forecast of an industrial authority, China’s
medical care market is expected to achieve an annual growth
rate exceeding 10% in the next three years. And China has
become the third largest medical care market in the world, ranking
only behind US and Japan. In 5 to 8 years, China is expected to
outpace Japan and become the second largest. The Company is
determined to take hold of this valuable opportunity and continue
to proactively explore the domestic medical care market. As a
short-term goal, we are going to set up chain dental clinics in
China. During the Year, through cooperation with “Hua Xia
Healthcare”, a HKSE-listed company, our first dental hospital
was set up in Fuzhou City. In addition, the Company plans to
establish a chain hospital network in China under the brand
name of Town Health through acquisitions, target to open near
20 specialized chain hospitals in the near future, making Town
Health one of the most important medical services providers in
China.

The Company also plans to expand its lifestyle-related healthcare
services, such as hair-planting and medical beauty treatment, to
mainland China and the wider Asia-Pacific region. Having built a
solid foundation in Hong Kong over the past 18 years, “Town
Health” now aims to promote its brand name to the international
healthcare services markets in future.

The Board of Directors understands that our remarkable
achievements today are the result of combined efforts of our
staff and a dedicated team of professional medical personnel,
and would like to take this opportunity to extend sincere gratitude
to them, and is expecting greater success with their continuous
contributions. We would also like to express appreciation to the
internationally renowned institutional investors, who have joined
us one after the other as our strategic shareholders, for their
unswerving support to and confidence in the Company.

Choi Ka Yee, Crystal
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial review

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of healthcare
and dental services, sale of healthcare and pharmaceutical
products, and sale of cardiology and peripheral vascular related
surgical equipment. The Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$275,628,000 for the year ended 31st March,
2007 (2006: approximately HK$231,179,000), representing an
increase of 19.2% as compared with the prior year. The increase
was mainly due to the significant improvement in the performance
of the Group’s core business — provision of healthcare and dental
services.

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March 2007 was
46.8% (2006: 48.4%).

Other income for the current year amounted to approximately
HK$65,016,000 (2006: approximately HK$9,847,000), out of
which, approximately HK$54,283,000 represents gain on fair
value changes of held-for-trading investments acquired by the
Group during the year with idle funds of the Group.

Other expenses increased to approximately HK$21,291,000 from
approximately HK$3,865,000 registered in prior year. In current
year, the Group re-assessed the prospect of its investments in
subsidiaries, medical and dental practices and associated
companies. In view of the current market conditions and the
prospect of such investments, the Group, for prudence sake,
recognised an impairment loss of approximately HK$20,335,000
in respect of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions of certain of
such investments.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group held cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$75,624,000 (2006: approximately
HK$116,406,000). Net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$297,878,000 (2006: approximately HK$159,485,000). Current
ratio (defined as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 4.0 (2006: 2.9).
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As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had outstanding bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$53,022,000 (2006:
approximately HK$62,609,000). The Group had variable-rate
borrowings on bank loan which carry interest at prime rate less
2.8% to 1.5% per annum. The range of effective interest rates
(which were also equal to contracted interest rates) on the
Group’s borrowings were as follows:

EBAIE
IR

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate borrowings

The other loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

Capital structure

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$436,587,000
(2006: approximately HK$249,155,000).

As at 31st March, 2007, gearing ratio (defined as total long-term
liabilities divided by total shareholders’ equity) of the Group was
6.0% (2006: 26.5%).

Major currencies used for the Group’s transactions were Hong
Kong Dollars, Renminbi and US Dollars. As Hong Kong Dollars
are pegged to the US Dollars and the fiscal policy of the Central
Government of the People’s Republic of China in relation to
Renminbi is relatively stable throughout the year, the Group
considers that the potential foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employee information

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by
responsibilities as at 31st March, 2007 and 2006 is set out below:

Medical and dental practitioners mERITE

Assistant nurses By &

Management BEIBAEB

Sales/Administration/Clerical WE TR
support/Others NEXEHAb

Approximately 7.1% of the total employees are stationed in the
PRC and other countries, and the remaining are stationed in
Hong Kong.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and individual’s performance and experience. On top
of regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share option
may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.

The Group maintains good relationship with its staff. There has
not been any interruption to its operations as a result of labour
disputes. In addition, the Group provides provident fund to its
employees in accordance with the statutory requirements of the
respective jurisdictions in where the employees reside.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

Pledge of assets

As at 31st March, 2007, certain property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group with the carrying value
of HK$994,000 (2006: HK$5,585,000) and HK$38,125,000 (2006:
HK$35,825,000) respectively and bank deposits of
HK$10,000,000 (2006: HK$10,000,000) were pledged to secure
general bank facilities granted to the Group.
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Capital commitments

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$2,257,000 (2006: approximately
HK$38,600,000).

Post balance sheet events

(a) On 29th March, 2007, Hong Kong Health Check entered
into an option agreement with Top Act Group Limited (“Top
Act”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Pursuant
to the option agreement, Hong Kong Health Check has
agreed to grant the option to Top Act at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.00. Pursuant to the option
agreement, Top Act shall be entitled to require Hong Kong
Health Check to issue the Convertible Bond Il in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$500,000,000 during the
period of one month commencing from the date of
fulfilment of certain conditions, including independent
shareholder’s approval in an Extraordinary Meeting, the
Stock Exchange and Bermuda Monetary Authority,
precedent of the option agreement. The convertible bonds
can be converted into ordinary shares of Hong Kong Health
Check at a conversion price of HK$0.25.

Details of these are disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 11th April, 2007.

(b) On 2nd May, 2007 the Company entered into the
conditional placing agreement with an independent placing
agent for the placing of up to 195,000,000 new shares to
the subscribers at the placing place of HK$0.5412 per
placing share. The placement was completed on 25th May
2007.

Details of these are disclosed in announcements of the
Company dated 3rd May, 2007 and 25th May, 2007.
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(c) On 8th May, 2007 the Company entered into another
conditional placing agreement with an independent placing
agent for the placing of up to 320,000,000 new shares to
the subscribers at the placing place of HK$0.61 per placing
share.

Details of these are disclosed in announcements of the
Company dated 8th May, 2007.

(d) On 15th May, 2007, the Company entered into a non-
binding term sheet in relation to the Group’s possible
acquisition of 51% equity interest in a number of
companies which operate eight existing Nu/Hart Hair
Clinics located in Atlanta, Chicago, New York, Philadelphia
and Pittsburgh in the United States of America and in
Dubai, Manila, and Puerto Rico for a cash consideration
of US$3,225,750 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,160,850), subject to adjustment.

The Nu/Hart Hair Clinics are principally engaged in
provision of hair transplant and laser hair re-growth
services.

Details of these are disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 16th May, 2007.

Change in auditors of the Company in the preceding three
years

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu were first appointed as
auditors of the Company on 13th March, 2003. Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, who have been acting as auditors of the
Group since then, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

(c)

(d)
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
complete with the business of the Group during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board of Directors. The audit committee will also
be responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP
and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George. Mr. Chan Kam Chiu is the
chairman of the Committee. The Committee has met four times
during the year.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s audited results
for the year ended 31st March, 2007.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31st March, 2007,
repurchased its own shares on GEM as follows:

the Company

Number of shares

Month of repurchase repurchased
B E A 7 BB 12 # B
August 2006 —EZTRENA 19,554,000
September 2006 ZEERFNA 21,262,000
October 2006 —ETRETA 133,828,000
January 2007 —EZLF—HR 130,920,000

305,564,000

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchases and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the par value of these shares which amounted to
HK$3,055,640. Apart from the repurchases of the shares as
disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31st March, 2007.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the period. The Company has
also made specific enquiry to all Directors and the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard
of dealing and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.
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Price per share

BRE®K Aggregate
Highest Lowest consideration
RS RIE wRE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
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0.230 0.229 4,931,919
0.233 0.227 31,144,320
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Miss Choi Ka Yee, Crystal, aged 26, graduated from Boston
College, the United States of America, with a bachelor’s degree
of science in accountancy. She also completed her master’s
degree in corporate finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2006. Miss Choi joined Early Light Group in
September 2003, which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of toys and property investment. Miss
Choi has extensive knowledge in accounting and corporate
finance. She joined the Company in April 2005 as the director of
the corporate finance. Miss Choi is also an executive director of
Hong Kong Health Check and Laboratory Holdings Company
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Miss Choi was
appointed as an executive director and chairman of the Company
on 12th May, 2006 and 26th October, 2006 respectively.

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, aged 43, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company as well as the founder of the Group. Dr. Cho is
also the compliance officer of the Company. Dr. Cho graduated
from the University of Hong Kong and holds the qualifications of
MBBS (HK), FHKCFP, FRACGP, DCH (London), DCH (RCP&SI)
and DCH (Glasgow). He is also the Permanent President of
Hong Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited
and the District President of Yau Tsim District of Scout
Association of Hong Kong. Dr. Cho founded the Group in
December 1989 and now is responsible for directing the Group’s
overall business and development strategies. He is the brother
of Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin. Dr. Cho is also a director of Broad
Idea International Limited, the substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet, aged 40, is the Director of Medical
Services of the Group. He graduated from the University of Hong
Kong and holds the qualifications of MBBS (HK), MRCGP, DCH
(London), DFM (CUHK) and Dip Med (CUHK). He joined the
Group in 1994 and is responsible for the strategic development
of the Group’s medical services and provides training to the
medical practitioners of the Group. Dr. Fung is also an executive
director and chairman of Hong Kong Health Check and Laboratory
Holdings Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin, aged 45, graduated from Newcastle
Upon Tyne University in UK with a bachelor degree in 1990. He
also holds a Diploma in Management Studies from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He has been holding various senior
executive positions in a number of corporations. Mr. Cho was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 24th July,
2001. He is responsible for the overall development and
operations of the healthcare services of the Group. He is the
brother of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee. Mr. Cho is also a director of
Broad Idea International Limited, the substantial shareholder of
the Company and executive director of Hong Kong Health Check
and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited , the shares of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, J.P.,, aged 61, holds a master
degree in business administration from Newport University in
the United States of America and a bachelor degree in business
administration from Sussex College of Technology in the United
Kingdom. He also holds a Ph.D in Business Management from
Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC. Dr. Choi is the chairman
of Early Light International (Holdings) Ltd. and has extensive
business interests in the manufacturing industry and the property
sector. He is the Honorary President of the Toys Manufacturer’s
Association of Hong Kong, Honorary President of the Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council and Council Member of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Choi is also a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a non-executive director and vice chairman of
Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78),
the shares of which are listed on the main board of Stock
Exchange. Dr. Choi was appointed as a non-executive director
and vice-chairman of the Company on 7th February, 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, aged 54, has engaged in the catering
industry for almost 30 years. He has also involved in
entertainment, property and investment project in the recent
years. Mr. Chan is the President (founding chairman) of Hong
Kong Shatin Industries & Commerce Association Limited and
currently an executive member of the Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Qingxin County,
Guangdong Province and member of the Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangzhou
Li Wan. He is also an honorary president and director of Shatin
Sports Association Limited since 1992 and the chairman of the
Shatin District Junior Police Call since 1996. He was awarded
the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service”
since July 2004. Mr. Chan was appointed as an Independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
of the Company both on 30th July, 2002.

Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, J.p., aged 53, is the chairman of the Shatin
District Council. Mr. Wai is a councillor of the Shatin District
Council since 1988. He was also the chairman of the Culture,
Sports and Community Development Committee of the Shatin
Provisional District Board for the period form 1998 to 1999. He
is currently a vice-president of Shatin Sports Association Limited,
a director of the board of Po Leung Kuk Wong Chi Ho (Tin Sum
Valley) Primary School and Management Committee Member of
Helen Liang Memorial Secondary School. Mr. Wai was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
audit committee of the Company both on 30th July, 2002.

Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George, aged 49, is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. He is the proprietor of George
K. W. Ho & Co., Certified Public Accountants and possesses
over 20 years’ professional experience in accounting, auditing,
tax planning and business advisory. Mr. Ho is also a director of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Commerce and Industry Associations Limited. Mr. Ho is appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Belle International
Holdings Company Limited with effect from 17th October, 2006.
Mr. Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee of the Company both on
28th September, 2004.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREGHRESE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standard of
corporate governance for the enhancement of shareholders’
value. The Company has complied with the required code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules for
the year ended 31st March 2007, except for the following
deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

This code stipulates that the role of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the period up to 25th October, 2006, Dr.
Cho Kwai Chee (“Dr. Cho”) was the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company who was responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s businesses. The Board considered that
Dr. Cho’s in-depth professional knowledge of and extensive
network in the healthcare industry would bring invaluable input
to the Board. The Board also considered a balance of power
and authority could be ensured by the participation of experienced
and high caliber members of the Board which meets regularly to
discuss issues affecting operations of the Company.

Though no abuse in power and authority was ever experienced,
the Broad re-visited the respective function of the Broad and the
management. In a view to more effectively utilize the valuable
time and effort of the senior executives of the Group, the Broad
resolved that, with effect from 26th October, 2006, Dr. Cho
resigned as chairman of the Board but remains as an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Miss
Choi Ka Yee, Crystal, an executive director of the Company,
was appointed as chairman of the Company.

Code Provision A.4

This code stipulates that all directors should be subject to re-
election at regular intervals. The then Articles of Association of
the Company do not provide for retirement by rotation of a director
holding office as managing director or joint managing director. A
resolution was put forward to the shareholders at the Company’s
last annual general meeting held on 28th July, 2006 for amending
the Articles to comply with the Code on Corporate Governance
practices. The resolution was passed.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERREE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Code Provision A.4.2

This code stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. The then Articles
of Association of the Company only requires such directors who
are appointed to fill a casual vacancy to be re-elected at the
next annual general meeting. A resolution was put forward to
the shareholders at the Company’s last annual general meeting
held on 28th July, 2006 for amending the Articles to comply with
the Code on Corporate Governance practices. The resolution
was passed.

Code Provision A.4.4

This code stipulates that listed issuers should establish a
nomination committee with specific written terms of reference.
The nomination committee should, among others, (i) reviews the
structure, size and composition of the board and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;
(ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors.

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
Instead, the full Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors. The Board will take into consideration criteria such as
expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when considering
new Director appointment. The Board will conduct in-depth
assessment on the independence of candidates for post of
independent Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREGHRESE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company has
also made specific enquiry to all Directors and the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard
of dealing and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy;
reviewing and approving the work plan of the Group; and
overseeing the corporate governance of the Group. While the
management of the Company is responsible for proposing and
implementing the work plan of the Group, executing the day-to-
day operation of the Group and undertaking any further
responsibility as delegated by the Board from time to time.
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TEERREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board comprises four executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The
Company held four full Board meeting during the year ended
31st March, 2007. The following shows the composition of the
Board, name of individual Director and record of attendance of

each Director:

Exe (A

REEFHOHFLCE

Number of board
meeting held during
the director’s term

EFECTHNBRRNTES - —BIEWTT
%%&:%ﬁigFiﬂﬁ%%@ﬁi PN
NEREBE—ETT+tF=-A=+—H
HFEERRITOREEBESTL SR

AT#EYEESHEK - 1.?:”%%%*%

of office Number of meeting
ESTHREETZ attended'
Name of director EEEE ESSSRRE TGhHEZgSERE
Executive directors BITES
Miss. Choi Ka Yee (Chairman)? Ente/NE (£E)? 4 4
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee EETELE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTE A8 %) 4 4
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin® BEEEE? 4 4
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Benent BREEE 4 4
Non-executive director FHITES
Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming JP FEERETATEL 4 4
(Vice-chairman) (8 £ )
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan Kam Chiu bR &) 5t & 4 4
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP BB AR+ 4 4
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George fa] [B 2% 5 A 4 4
1 It includes the meeting attended by the Director via telephone 1 PRERESFERAEBFEACHENS
conference. o
2 Miss Choi Ka Yee, Crystal is a daughter of Dr. Francis Choi Chee 2 ZEpta B R DT EMITE ZHRKE
Ming JP, a non-executive Director and the Vice-chairman of the TREELTAFELTAFHLIHLR -
Company.
3 Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin is the brother of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, an 3 BEEHAERARANITEERITH
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. BEEETBENR -
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREGHRESE

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP have been
appointed for a term of two years expiring on 29th July, 2008,
and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George has been appointed for a term
of two years expiring on 27th September, 2008. Dr. Francis
Choi Chee Ming JP does not have any service contract with the
Company nor will he receive any remuneration from acting as a
non-executive Director. These appointments are subject to
retirement by rotation and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Articles of Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee with
specific written terms of reference. The Committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wai Kwok Hung JP (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George, and an
executive Director, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee. The committee has held
one meeting during the year ended 31st March, 2007.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, provide both statutory
audit and non-audit services to the Group. For the year ended
31st March, 2007, fee for statutory audit for the Group amounts
to approximately HK$2,220,000. Non-audit services include tax
compliance and planning, agreed upon procedures on review of
financial statements and transactions, etc. Total fee paid for
non-audit services during the year ended 31st March, 2007 was
approximately HK$446,000.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
reports and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the board of Directors. The audit committee will also
be responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Wai Kwok
Hung JP and Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George. The Committee
convened four meetings with full attendance during the year
ended 31st March, 2007. One of these meetings was also
attended by the Company’s external auditors so that the
committee members could exchange their views and concerns
with the auditors. During these meetings, the committee reviewed
the annual, interim and quarterly results of the Group and made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect
of the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring the appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system of the Group is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives
in (i) effectiveness and efficiency of operations; (ii) reliability of
financial reporting; and (iii) compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The board of Directors is responsible for the Company’s system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group, based on the guidelines given in the book “Internal
Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework” published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
designed a system addressing the five different internal control
elements, namely the control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-
assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control policies
and procedures. On top of the self-assessment, the board of
Directors reviews at least annually the overall effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control systems covering financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management.

The board of Directors is of the view that the Group’s internal
control system is effective to achieve the Group’s internal control
objectives.

Currently, the Group does not have an internal audit function.
The Board considers that a separate internal audit department
is not necessary because (i) the existing internal control system
of the Group is effective; and (ii) the costs of setting up and
maintaining a separate internal audit department outweigh the
benefit the department may bring to the Group.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes
55 and 23 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 34 of
the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and
propose a bonus issue of shares to the shareholders on the
basis of two shares for every share held.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the year, the Group acquired 49% interest in Pak On
Medical Company Limited (“Pak On”) at a consideration of
approximately HK$2,736,000. Pak On is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in the operations of
medical clinics in Hong Kong.

Following the further issue of convertible bonds by Hong Kong
Health Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Town Health Medical Technology Holdings
Company Limited) (“Hong Kong Health Check”), the Group’s
potential voting rights in Hong Kong Health Check, upon the
conversion of the Group’s current exercisable convertible bonds,
was reduced from 55.79% to 35.75%. Accordingly, Hong Kong
Health Check has since been reclassified as an associate of the
Group.

In addition, the Group disposed of 11.27% interest in Core
Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Plasmagene Biosciences Limited) during the year. The
shareholding held by the Group was decreased to approximately
8% and the remaining investment was reclassified as “Held for
trading investments”.

ARAEZEERZVE_TTLF
ZA=t+t—BLhFEZFREEERZ
RAaPBHRE -

TEXK
ARAR—AREZERAR

HFZE
B E A T&Hf**"iz%%% IR
REMBRERMES5K%23 -

REKRDE
AEEBEE_ZTTLF=A=1t—H
HFEZEBERNFREMAEZFA
Wamk o

FERRATENRE - BRBMK
RETAR BERASHE—RERH
T 7 A B -

MEBARKREE QT

FA - REEAK(ER2,736,000% T

WERLEBEAERAA ([AL]) 2

49%%/\ c BRI EBFEMK 2
NEl o TERBEANEREDME

f% o

BEHESEREESDEHITRARA
A(AEIEREEBEREERARA
A1) (1&EAER]) & —FHITAIRR
BEHEZE AEERESEBHRIERL
WERNAEEREIITEJBERE
FEEBRE 2 %55.79%H &
35.75% ° At - EE%EQAE%&E%)T%
HAAEBZBERT -

LS REBRFALELREDE
BREBEZERARAR (AIHEIEEER
EMBBEABERAR]) 211.27% %5 -
AEEFAZBECHRENS% T
RECEFNEARIFIEERERE] -

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Directors’ Report

EEEHEE

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group acquired a further 25% interest in Next Dimension
Advertising (H.K.) Limited (“Next Dimension”) at a consideration
of HK$700,000. Next Dimension is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is principally engaged in provision of design,
promotion, advertising and public relationship services. Following
the completion of the acquisition, the Group holds 65% interest
in Next Dimension.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates
at 31st March, 2007 are set in notes 55 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties at the year end date. The net increase in fair value of
investment properties, which has been credited to the
consolidated income statement, amounted to HK$2,300,000.

Details of movements in the investment properties are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$8,309,000 for the expansion of
the Group’s business.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 20 to
the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds issued by the Group, which
were fully converted during the year, are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman lIslands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 305,564,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate price
of approximately HK$67,195,000, representing an average price
of HK$0.22 paid for each share purchased. All of these shares
were cancelled upon repurchase.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31st March, 2007 comprised the share premium, contributed
surplus, distributable reserve and accumulated losses which in
aggregate amounted to HK$170,126,626 (2006:
HK$168,001,013). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following the payment of
distributions or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the share
premium account, of the Company.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Miss Choi Ka Yee, Crystal (Chairman)
(appointed on 12th May, 2006)

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet

Non-executive director:

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JrP
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin and
Mr. Chan Kam Chiu will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung have been appointed
for a term of two years expiring on 29th July, 2008, and Mr. Ho
Kwok Wah, George has been appointed for a term of two years
expiring on 27th September, 2008. The appointments are subject
to retirement by rotation and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Company’s Articles of Association.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

At 31st March, 2007, the interests of the directors and the chief
executives and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and convertible bonds of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

The Company

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Name of director Capacity

. 51

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
EETEA

Held by controlled
corporation (note)
mEEHER S (M)

Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP
HERE LA FHL

Held by controlled
corporation (note)
mEEEDEE A ()

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
ISR

issued ordinary
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS (Continued)

Note: These 2,615,027,451 shares are owned by Broad Idea International
Limited. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Dr. Francis Choi Chee Ming, JP are
deemed to be interested in the 2,615,027,451 shares owned by Broad
Idea International Limited under Part XV of the SFO given that they
are beneficially interested in 50.1% and 49.9% of the issued share
capital of Broad ldea International Limited respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief
executives of the Company, nor their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or convertible
bonds of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31st March, 2007 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under sections 352 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2007, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors and chief executives, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRRERE 545

Broad ldea International
Limited

Beneficial owner
ExnEAA

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Atlantis Investment
Management Limited

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2007.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is less than
30% of the Group’s total turnovers. The five largest suppliers of
the Group and the largest supplier accounted for approximately
48% and 29% of the Group’s total purchases respectively.

Included in the five largest suppliers is Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited which is owned by Mr. Lai Kwok Fai, a director of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Other than the aforementioned, at no time during the year, did a
director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, have an interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers of the
Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Major Customers and
Suppliers”, none of the directors, management shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities including debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13th September, 2004, the Group entered into a master
agreement with Kowloon Hearing Services Limited in relation to
the purchase of certain hearing-aid products. For the year ended
31st March, 2007, the Group purchased healthcare products of
approximately HK$2,717,000 from Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited.

The transactions are regarded as continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Particulars of
these transactions are disclosed in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the above transactions had been conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, on
normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties,
and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 16 to 22 of the annual
report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors of the Company on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
year. The Company has also made specific enquiry to all directors
of the Company and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealing and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board of Directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Board of Directors, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant events occurring after the balance sheet
date are set out in note 53 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Choi Ka Yee, Crystal
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2007
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Independent Auditor's Report
BY R ES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Town
Health International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 34 to 127, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st March, 2007 and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BYZEMKES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
March, 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with HKFRSs and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2007
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Consolidated Income Statement

e REmR

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTTLF=A=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of associates

Share of results of associates

Gain on conversion options
embedded in convertible bonds

Loss on early redemption features
embedded in convertible bonds

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends

Earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

Notes
B 5
A 7
56 A AR
EF
H 4 A 9
ITHE A
HFA 10
LN 11

HER A QR 2 WS 12
JE(R B2 R R 4

B =)

R 2 Was 24
AR & % AT I
REERKS 2 BE 24
BE Y% N TFE N

B B2 A i 7

P 15 B¢ 7 X 15
NG R Pl 16
AN AL -

RABIBERA A
DER RS

A% 8 17

TR A F 18
-

2007

e
HKS$

%7

275,627,568
(146,652,218)

2006
~EEAE

HK$
BT

231,179,362
(119,340,223)

128,975,350 111,839,139
65,015,863 9,846,782
(120,123,006) (90,987,300)
(21,291,471) (3,865,435)

(3,491,133) (2,399,910)
1,915,423 -
2,739,050 (475,284)

166,343,042 -
(912,839) -
2,300,000 3,781,630
221,470,279 27,739,622
(14,686,224)  (6,291,163)
206,784,055 21,448,459
214,850,183 20,030,499
(8,066,128) 1,417,960
206,784,055 21,448,459
- 9,993,188

4.18 cents{l 0.44 centfll
N/A N/A




Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEERER

At 31st March, 2007
RZTTLF=A=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Interests in associates

Available-for-sale investments

Deposit paid on acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Prepaid lease payments

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from investees

Amounts due from related parties

Amounts due from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Amount due from a director

Tax recoverable

Held for trading investments

Conversion options embedded in
convertible bonds

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Early redemption option

embedded in convertible bonds
Amounts due to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries
Amounts due to related parties
Bank and other borrowings

— due within one year
Obligations under finance

leases — due within one year
Tax payable

ERBEE
128

WE - BERRR
% 18 8 3R

e
A 2
o A
BRENE - BER
2B EMNES
B EE

i

18 4 B

B £ ft 8 U 3K TR
B RERA

& Wi Bt & X R) 7RO
FEW T E R m
FW&E@%%Q $E
& W B 18
9@%%%%
B —REFEHIA
AJ Y (@ £ IR
REEEZRE
A #  8 5 T Fid
R
BHEARITER
RITESR IR

RBEE
& A AR 3R B

H Al & A 3R IA
AR ES AR F
%@%%%Z%E
FE B B 2
4@k$m
F& 1 B BBk 2 B 5RR
ﬁﬁ&ﬁm1ﬁ

- —FREH
BE M A AR
—R—FAEH
i ENE R

Notes

Bt 5

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

26
27

21
28
29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37

34

31
38

39

40

2007 2006
SR
HK$ HK$

BT 7T
38,125,000 35,825,000
15,797,901 16,223,250
9,509,148 9,750,235
37,172,357 50,963,605
17,490,868 21,205,522
53,243,220 3,657,952
10,097,585 17,206,909
181,436,079 154,832,473
13,777,997 13,782,789
51,643,001 49,560,143
242,180 242,727
26,527,106 13,047,359
1,287,500 683,350
2,846,442 4,495,365
10,596,203 9,362,196
- 950,000

538,670 1,215,084
21,021,288 22,929,500
182,405,395 =
10,000,000 10,000,000
75,624,316 116,406,424
396,510,098 242,674,937
41,054,213 38,909,353
912,839 =
11,541,974 4,737,290
914,859 =
29,734,414 37,487,642
45,600 =
14,427,577 2,056,083
98,631,476 83,190,368

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31st March, 2007
RZZZT+F=-A=+—H

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Bank and other borrowings
— due after one year
Obligations under finance
leases — due after one year
Convertible bonds

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Minority interests

Total equity

Notes

Bt 5

RBEERE

REERARBAEME

FERBEE

BELEHIBEE 41
RITRHMEE

— —F 1% 5| B 39
B & 4R

— R —F &5 5 40
A} ES 42

ERREE
fi& 4 43
f B

RRARPRIEREE A
FE A5 HE 25
DB R 2

5

258

a4

Bl
Cl

The financial statements on pages 34 to 127 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th
June, 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Choi Ka Yee, Crystal
Director

Cho Kwai Chee
Director

2007 2006
—ggtE  —TIAF
HKS$ HK$

BT BT
297,878,622 159,484,569
479,314,701 314,317,042
3,761,826 3,998,342
23,288,039 25,120,982
78,407 -

- 36,692,212
27,128,272 65,811,536
452,186,429 248,505,506
50,719,819 49,965,935
385,867,406 199,189,296
436,587,225 249,155,231
15,599,204 (649,725)
452,186,429 248,505,506

FMEI2TE M ERREHEES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
 E-ETLF=A=T—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARRERE AREES
Convertible Investment Accumulated

bonds equity Distributable  revaluation  Translation (losses) Minority

Share Share reserve Capital reserve reserve reserve profits interests
capital premium  TEBES reserve THK REEf Ei Rt (BB Total HURR Total
Bx  RHEE  RAEE  EAER i i 1] BA @t 33 @zt
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
B BT B BT B B A A A A A

(note i) (note i)

(&) (Bt &)

At 1st April, 2005 RZZZREMA-R 17,467,966 148,121,569 - 10032822 72,670,245 = - (124,878393) 123414209 11,969,021 135,383,230
Exchange difference REBNEBH

arising on translation FELTER

of foreign operations RERBRL

recognised directly BN ERE

in equity - - - - - - 220,364 - 220,364 172,231 392,595
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - 20030499 20030499 1417960  21,448459

Total recognised income ~ FAEHERZ
and expense forthe year WA RH X 28 = = = = = = 220,364 20,030,499 20,250,863 1,590,191 21,841,054
Issue of new shares BTHR 23849320 64,393,166 - - - - - - 88,242,486 - 88242486

Share issue expenses RABTRX - (4968824) - - - - - - (4,968,824) - (4,968,824)
Capital contributed DPERELE

by minority shareholders = = = = = = = = = 227,707 227,707
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& fii B 2 &

(note i) (GEA - - - - - - - - - (12454791)  (12454,791)
Recognition of equity RARRES

component of RS

convertible bonds - - 3,202,959 - - - - - 3,202,959 - 3,202,959
Issue of shares ERTRRES

upon conversion BETRH

of convertible bonds 8,648,649 21,301,043 (942,966) - - - - - 29,006,726 - 29,006,726
Dividend paid to IR FLHER

minority shareholders ZRE - - - - - - - - - (1981,853)  (1,981,853)
Dividend paid EfRE - - - - (9,993,188) - - - (9,993188) - (9993188
At 31st March, 2006 RZZFERE=A=1-H 49,965,935 228,846,954 2259993 10,032,822 62,677,057 - 220,364 (104,847,894) 249,155,231 (649,725) 248,505,506
Exchange difference BEEINEHR

arising on translationof  FIEL T ER

foreign operations

recognised directly

in equity - - - - - - 286,432 - 286,432 223,870 510,302
Fair value changes MHEREZ

in available-for-sale ATEEE

investments - - - - - 2,543,927 - - 2,543,927 - 2,543,927
Profit for the year FEEF = = = = = = - 214,850,183 214,850,183 (8,066,128) 206,784,055
Total recognised FREERL

income and expense WARHR 28

for the year - - - - - 2,543,927 286,432 214,850,183 217,680,542 (7,842,258) 209,838,284
Capital contributed DURRLE

by minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries  KEEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 8,952,421 8,952,421
Deemed disposal REHERR AR - - - - - - - - - 68,935 68,935

of a subsidiary (3t 46)

(note 46) - - - - - - - - - 16,000,570 16,000,570
Issue of shares ERTRRES

upon conversion BETRH

of convertible bonds 3809524  35396,812 (2,259,993) - - - - - 36,946,343 - 36,946,343
Shares repurchased [ & (3,055,640)  (64,139,251) - - - - - - (67,194,891) - (67,194,891)
Dividend paid to minority X F A HRE

shareholders pd 3 = - - - - - - - - (930,739) (930,739)

At 31st March, 2007 RZTTLEZA=F—-H 50719819 200,104,515 - 10032822 62,677,057 2,543,927 506,796 110,002,289 436,587,225 15599204 452,186,429

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT




TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meRERgExR

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE-ZTTLF=A=1+T—HILFE

Notes:

(if)

(iif)

Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of HK$350,000 of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the nominal value of the share capital of approximately
HK$10,382,822 of Town Health (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation
in April 2000.

The distributable reserve of the Group represents the amount arising

from the reduction of share capital net of dividend paid.

The amount represents the net liabilities of Hong Kong Health Check
and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as Town
Health Medical Technology Holdings Company Limited) (“Hong Kong
Health Check”) at the date from which the Group included the results
of Hong Kong Health Check into its consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, details of which are set out in note 2

to the consolidated financial statements.

B

(i)

(iiif)

ARE 2 AR TR AN R R #AT
3 A% 2 T {E.350,00078 7T B2 Town
Health (BVI) Limited (R ER =FF
%imﬂz&"2$§@ﬁ‘kgﬁ%ﬁﬂ£
M 2 M ARl 2 AN EE A
10,382,822/ 7T, 2 Z= F

AL B 2 AT 3 Ik % 4 75 4 AR AR HIDRR
EEFA(EHNRENKER) -

ZEeRBEASEREEESFMA
BREMZBASHEAUF27TH&EA
RENBIMBHRR]IEEERRBR
BEDEERARAR (517 [ RS
BRRERAERQR]) ([BEER])
ZEBHEAFARGEMBRERZA
FEBRCAERR  FBEERES
BT ARMIRE2



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2 =| EE:% Jlbi%

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTLF=A=1+—HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income from listed investments
Gain on conversion options embedded in
convertible bonds
Impairment loss in respect of:
— goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates
— amounts due from investees
— goodwill arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries, and medical and
dental practices
— amounts due from associates
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment
Increase in fair value on held
for trading investment
Impairment loss on slow moving
inventories, net of write back
Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables, net of write back
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on early redemption features
embedded in convertible bonds
Gain on disposal of listed securities
Release of prepaid lease payments
Increase in fair value of investment
properties
Share of results of associates
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of associates

Operating cash inflow before working
capital changes

REREK
I Bt Al it 7l
RATHEELAE

M KA

FEEMREBERE ZBEWA

QECES Silie:
Yoz
THZEZRBERR

-~ WBRERRREEE

—EREEE RFFHER
—WBEHBAR - AE
BYFMRSEE

— R = R R FUR
UESS @%&mﬁz
e
REEERE D FEEMN

T SR E
ERREDERE
FEWOR TR e Bty FE ORI 2
BEBRRREER
HENE  BERRE
ZB#R

A B 5 I 1R
ACI) e
HEEMES 2 W
R ENEER
REMERFEEM

EIEBERARE
BEKA
HERE DR W

£y

EE
BEn

53 2

B8
Tk

>m:FN1
>J>ZIE

2007 2006
2Bty —TIAA
HK$ HKS

BT B TT
221,470,279 27,739,622
(4,331,936) (2,281,435)
(187,486) (2,700,265)
(166,343,042) -
588,008 3,327,080

- 538,355
19,747,205 -
956,258 S
7,677,972 6,134,030
(54,283,180) (536,651)
(451,267) 457,178
4,344,334 138,654
395,686 73,639
912,839 S

- (92,575)

241,634 169,616
(2,300,000) (3,781,630)
(2,739,050) 475,284
3,491,133 2,399,910
(1,915,423) -
27,273,964 32,060,812

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REREREBR

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTTLF=A=+—HIFE

Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables
Increase in trade and
other payables
Decrease (increase) in held for
trading investments

Cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
Increase in amounts due from associates
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of medical and dental practices
Purchase of interests in associates
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Deposits paid on acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of associates
Interest received
Dividend received from associates
Decrease in amounts due from
related parties
Decrease (increase) in amount due
from a director
Decrease (increase) in amount due
from an investee
Dividend received from listed investments
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of investment properties

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

BRI ()
BRER R 1t
B I
BHER R 1
OB
FEEERE

W ()

BaxBIRE
mA (i)
EHARFGH

BEXBEL (BA)

RERR

REED
BALHERE

RIEHE—FRHE DA
JE Ykt 2 13 B SRR AN
KENE  BERR

KETERRTED
LEOATE
BB 2

Pl gy
BB RS

HEBERRMFHE

B A
BMEEDRRE

FEACA BA B A B SRR

R B 3 SRR

R EE R R A

w4 ()

BERETREEERE

ﬁ%%% B &
REAERR
KERENE

REFHEAZEEEE

2007

ZEEtH

Notes HK$
it 7E BT
570,389

(54,234,192)

(5,098,710)

(21,893,068)

4,303,900 781,121
39,826,342 (6,130,274)
17,740,403 (280,119)
(1,731,924) (1,831,187)
16,008,479 (2,111,306)
(1,000) -
46 (34,812,882)
(14,944,381) (9,781,212)
(7,491,224) (7,166,414)
47 (4,069,000) (11,380,000)
(2,771,379) (6,344,917)
45 (794,155) 9,185,152
(10,097,585) (17,206,909)
5,023,761 -
2,488,461 2,281,435
1,009,700 1,046,350
1,648,923 2,848,040
950,000 (950,000)
829,699 (356,003)
187,486 2,700,265
- 785,873

(25,814,100)

(62,843,576)

(60,152,440)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

s Ao ~—1

T \éiﬁﬁmii
For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZZLE=A=1+—HILFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New borrowings raised

Capital contributed by minority shareholders

of subsidiaries
Advance from (repayment by) minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Increase in amounts due to
related companies
Payment on share repurchase
Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid
Dividend paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds
Dividend paid to shareholders
Expenses paid in connection with issue
of shares
Expenses paid in connection with issue
of convertible bonds

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts

MEEH

MEEE

]-FNCIEPS 20 3
BRIZEAR

1=PNCIES 0 8805
(B&) 2 7B

FEfT B RARE 1 B FREIE

7R B £ 2 3R
BEEE

XA &
RE-PNSIES Gl
XA B
EERMAEBEAE

BT P E 508
BT ABRESFAERA
MBRX N ZBE
RETROHEMZAX

RETARRES
EfZHAX

METHEL
ZEEFER

RERBEEHEER
(R 4) % i

EXgHoE

FAzHERAS
SEEH

FRZRERAE
£EEE

ReRREEEER

BBRZOM
RITEHEAS
WITEX

2007 2006
—ETtE —EERE
HK$ HK$

B BT
68,333,490 21,450,000
8,952,421 227,707
6,693,277 (1,553,626)
914,859 -
(67,194,891) -
(7,936,524) (4,606,110)
(3,237,002) (622,843)
(930,739) (1,981,853)
(82,842) -

- 88,242,486

- 72,000,000
- (9,993,188)
- (4,968,824)
- (4,875,170)

5,512,049 153,318,579
(41,323,048) 91,054,833
510,302 392,595
115,613,244 24,165,816
74,800,498 115,613,244
75,624,316 116,406,424
(823,818) (793,180)
74,800,498 115,613,244
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is Broad Idea
International Limited (“Broad Idea”) which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date, Broad Idea ceased to be the ultimate holding
company after the placements of shares.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporation information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates are
set out in notes 55 and 23 respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to a conditional subscription agreement dated
9th December, 2005 entered into between Hong Kong
Health Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as Town Health Medical Technology
Holdings Company Limited) (“Hong Kong Health Check”)
and Top Act Group Limited (“Top Act”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 23rd February, 2006, Top
Act subscribed convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds
I”) of an aggregate principal amount of HK$60,000,000
issued by Hong Kong Health Check.

Upon subscription in February 2006, Convertible Bonds |
were immediately convertible into 1,463,414,634 shares
of Hong Kong Health Check at a conversion price of
HK$0.041. Upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds I,
the Group would be given 55.79% of ownership interest
and as a consequence voting rights in Hong Kong Health
Check. As at 31st March, 2006, Hong Kong Health Check
was consolidated as a subsidiary of the Group because
the Group had the ability to exercise control over the
financial and operating policies of Hong Kong Health
Check as the Convertible Bonds | were currently
convertible.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

On 3rd October, 2006, Hong Kong Health Check further
issued convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds 11”) of
an aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000 at a
conversion price of HK$0.041 to third parties which were
also immediately convertible. Upon conversion of both
Convertible Bonds | by the Group and Convertible Bonds
Il by those third parties, the Group’s ownership interest in
Hong Kong Health Check will be diluted to 35.75%.

Following the issue of the Convertible Bonds I, the Group
did not have the ability to exercise control over the
financial and operating policies of Hong Kong Health
Check. Accordingly, the results and assets and liabilities
of Hong Kong Health Check have to be incorporated in
the consolidated financial statements using equity method
of accounting.

Since the Group has no present equity interest in Hong
Kong Health Check, no results and changes in
shareholders’ equity of Hong Kong Health Check were
shared by the Group.

Regarding the Convertible Bonds |, the Group had
reclassified all the debt element of the Convertible Bonds
| as available-for-sale investments and the conversion
option element of the Convertible Bonds | as conversion
options embedded in the convertible bonds, details of
which are set out in notes 24 and 34 respectively.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are either effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st December, 2005 or 1st January, 2006. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.
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(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of these
standards, amendment or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position

of the Group.
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - Int 7

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, !
2007.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2
2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2
2006.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, )
2006.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2
2006.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st @

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Capital Disclosures’

Borrowing Costs?

Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

Operating Segments?

Applying the Restatement Approach under
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies®

Scope of HKFRS 2*

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives®
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment®
HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Shares

Transactions’
Service Concession Arrangements®

November, 2006.

v Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 7
2007.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, J
2008.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for the investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisitions before 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary for which
the agreement date is before 1st January, 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of
acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
of subsidiaries before 1st January, 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1st April, 2005 onwards,
and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill related may be impaired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January,
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which
the agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition of subsidiary is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Additional interest in subsidiaries are measured at the
carrying amounts of identified assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any excess of the consideration over the
book value of net assets acquired are accounted for as
goodwill.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. From 1st January,
2005 onwards, the Group has discontinued amortisation
of goodwill and such goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January,
2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair values of consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Medical and dental consultation income is recognised
when the related services are rendered.

Management and administrative service fee income in
relation to provision of healthcare services is recognised
when services are rendered.

Design, promotion, advertising and public relationship
service fee income is recognised when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of healthcare, pharmaceutical products and surgical
equipment are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Sales revenue from restaurant operations are recognised
when services are rendered to customers.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, whether shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments which represent up-front
payments to acquire leasehold land interests are stated
at cost and amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis.

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivables as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution plans where the
Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rate of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the re-translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations in other parts of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such translation differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
PRC operation is disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
in the consolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates/investees/related parties/minority shareholders
of subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
the financial assets held for trading on initial recognition.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. For available-for-
sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified as other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables, amounts due to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries, bank and other borrowings
and obligation under finance lease are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the loan notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs, if any, that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant hosts and deemed as held-
for-trading when the economic characteristic and risks of
the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those
of the host contracts, and the combined contracts are not
measured at fair value though profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31st
March, 2007 and the details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 22.

Impairment loss on receivables

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility of
accounts and on management’s estimate. In determining
whether impairment is required, the Group takes into
consideration the likelihood of collection. Specific
allowance is only made for receivables that are unlikely
to be collected and is recognised on the difference
between the estimated future cash flow expected to
receive discounted using the original effective interest rate
and the carrying value.

Allowance for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aged analysis
at each balance sheet date and identifies the slow-moving
inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production or sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for finished goods based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the Group carries out an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at balance sheet date and makes
the necessary allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated fair value of embedded derivatives

Determining the fair of embedded derivative requires
estimation on the assumptions used in Binomial model.
The Binomial model requires the Group to estimate
volatilities of the share price and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the fair value. As at 31st March,
2007, the fair values of conversion options and early
redemption options embedded in convertible bonds are
HK$182,405,395 and HK$912,839 respectively. Details of
the calculation are disclosed in note 24.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6a.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade
and other payables and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank balances and bank
and other borrowings. Bank balances and bank
loans at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
balances and bank and other borrowings have been
disclosed in notes 36 and 39 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Currency risk

Certain trade and other receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
BE-TTLF=A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6a.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2007, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

Price risk

The Group’s held for trading investments are
measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security
price risk. The management manages this exposure
by implementing a policy to maintain a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
6b. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with
standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices;

J the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis or using
prices from observable current market
transactions; and

o the fair value of derivative instruments at on
the basis of valuations carried out by Greater
China Appraisal Limited (“GCAL”), an
independent firm of professional valuers not
connected with the Group. GCAL possesses
appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar
derivative instruments with reference to
market values.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts
received and receivable from third parties for the year.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

follows:

Provision of healthcare and
dental services

Sales of healthcare and
pharmaceutical products

Sales of cardiology and peripheral
vascular related surgical equipment

Others

REBERE

Ko 5F B BR 75
#HE R IEE m

SEA

HEDLREE MEEME
HBA MR T 1l 23
HAt

L' ON

WA T EAREE STk
RN R B o A
EAEEYKASHMT :

2007 2006
e —EBETREF
HK$ HK$

i BT
187,200,428 137,037,105
21,392,280 16,701,566
39,074,037 56,545,860
27,960,823 20,894,831
275,627,568 231,179,362
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. E¥EXRHMESE
Business segments E S|
For management purposes, the Group is currently RAFEEE KAEBEREED
organised into four major operating divisions — (1) DEEKEEDE - DAlA -
provision of healthcare and dental services, (2) sales of MEHBERERTERD -
healthcare and pharmaceutical products, (3) sales of R)HEREEM & EmM - (3)3F
cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical &0 B K B2 i E AR R N
equipment and (4) others. These divisions are the basis FioEes - R@)EM - tFEH
on which the Group reports its primary segment HEAEBEREFTENESE
information. B2 BfE o
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBHAT
*  Provision of - Operations of the Group’s s RHUBERE - KLEASEIAEER

healthcare and medical and dental practices. R I B R % R BZ R o

dental services

+ Sales of - Sales of healthcare and o HEREEMm - HERRERRER:
healthcare and pharmaceutical products &3 BIEEER NI
pharmaceutical including radioactive isotopes FfI % °
products for medical uses.

+ Sales of - Sales of cardiology and o HEDLHM - MRk BEEER
cardiology and peripheral vascular related REENE BEHEEOHEBK
peripheral surgical equipment to 2 @SB [&3& M & 18 FE SN B
vascular hospitals, medical institutions FhioEs FMEeS -
related and medical practitioners.
surgical
equipment

» Others - Catering services and provision o Hifh - BRERBRE®SZ

of design, promotion, 55 ESROH
advertising and public AR 7% -

relationship services.

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. ¥ERMESE (&)

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

(Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2007

EBRIE (B)

BE-—SSLF=A=1—A

IEFE
Sales of
cardiology
and peripheral
Sales of vascular
Provision of healthcare related
healthcare  and pharma- surgical
and dental ceutical equipment
services products HELERK
RUBRRE HERE FROEMR Others Total
RENEHE  ERRER ANFHER Bt @t
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT B BT B BT
TURNOVER EXE 187,200,428 21,392,280 39,074,037 27,960,823 275,627,568
RESULTS £
Segment results ECES 23,998,835 9,618,092  (22,351,314)  (1,310,917) 9,954,696
Other income Bl A 62,868,647
Unallocated corporate expense AAREERY (19,658,599)
Finance costs HERA (3,491,133)
Gain on disposal of associates HERERR N 1,915,423 = = - 1,915,423
Share of results of associates EEBENAZE 2,739,050 - - - 2,739,050
Gain on conversion options EREHFAE
embedded in convertible bonds FRERENG 166,343,042
Impairment loss recognised AR
in respect of goodwill arising RAFEEE
on acquisitions of associates LHEER (588,008) - - - (588,008)
Loss on early redemption features 7k 5 F i 2
embedded in convertible bonds BRI 2 5B (912,839)
Increase in fair value of RENELTE
investment properties 2= 2,300,000
Profit before taxation Bt A0 4 7 221,470,279
Taxation i (14,686,224)
Profit for the year EERT 206,784,055
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. XBRHESE (&)
(Continued)
Business segments (Continued) XK oE (B
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 (Continued) BE-_ZZtH=H=+—H
LFEE (&)
Sales of
cardiology
and peripheral
Sales of vascular
Provision of healthcare related
healthcare  and pharma- surgical
and dental ceutical equipment
services products BHELEME
RUEBERR HERE FROEMR Others Total
RENERE  EaRER  ARFHAESR Bt @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
B BT BT BT B
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PEEE 144,839,428 44,062,804 23,970,770 10,991,483 223,864,485
Interests in associates REE QR 2 ER 17,490,868 - - - 17,490,868
Unallocated assets APREE 336,590,824
Total assets BEE 577,946,177
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilities PERE 17,578,529 721,048 17,720,693 5,033,943 41,054,213
Unallocated liabilities *PEEE 84,705,535
Total liabilities BaE 125,759,748
OTHER INFORMATION B &R
Capital expenditure EAYH 8,524,827 1,648,326 435,475 2,750,449 13,359,077
Depreciation of property, ER T
plant and equipment RE2NE 4,573,554 1,876,336 373,204 854,878 7,677,972
Impairment loss recognised in sANER®A
respect of: LREBR
- goodwill arising on -WBERBAR
acquisition of subsidiaries, BERTE
and healthcare and ik
dental practices mE 6,262,269 - 13,484,936 - 19,747,205
- amounts due from associates LGNS 956,258 - - - 956,258
— trade and other - ERER R
receivables E A - - 4,976,649 - 4,976,649
- inventories &8 - - 1,650,500 - 1,650,500
Release of prepaid lease ERENHENE
payments 241,634 - - - 241,634

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8. ¥ERMESE (&)

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

(Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2006

(%58 (&)
HE_ZZF=ZA=+—8H

IEFE
Sales of
cardiology
and peripheral
Sales of vascular
Provision of healthcare related
healthcare  and pharma- surgical
and dental ceutical equipment
services products HELEME
RUBRRE HERE FROEMR Others Total
REMEE  ERRER HIMNFHESR R @
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT B
TURNOVER EXE 137,037,105 16,701,566 56,545,860 20,894,831 231,179,362
RESULTS £
Segment results EES 23,216,924 6,212,066 2,638,175 (2,036,188) 30,030,977
Other income HipA 7,565,347
Unallocated corporate expenses  #7REEH T (7,436,058)
Finance costs BERKK (2,399,910)
Share of results of associates ERBERREE (475,284) - - - (475,284)
Impairment loss recognised in AREHERT
respect of goodwill arising on FEEEL
acquisition of associates HEER (3,327,080 - - - (3,327,080)
Increase in fair value REMENTE
of investment properties =0 3,781,630
Profit before taxation B AR 27,739,622
Taxation HE (6,291,163)
Profit for the year ERRF 21,448,459
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 (Continued)

ASSETS

Segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised

in respect of:

- trade and other receivables

- inventories

- goodwill arising on
acquisition of associates

- amounts due from investees

BE

/\*E élF
REEAT S
AOREE

MEE

8f
/\*ng

rAAEEE

Baf

Hpas
AR
nx - BER
RELNE
RATEEER
LRERE
- W& R
e
—Ef
W% LN

*ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ 7l
ZTAE

Release of prepaid lease payments #EE[HEEHE

Provision of
healthcare
and dental

services

RUBRRE
RFMERH

HKS
B

115,528,765
21,205,522

11,096,755

46,322,975

3,489,932

3,327,080

538,355
169,616

8. XBRUHEDE (&)

EBRoE(B)

HE—

IEFE (8)

Sales of

cardiology

and peripheral

Sales of vascular
healthcare related
and pharma- surgical
ceutical equipment
products HELERK
HERR REENERB
ERRER HNFHER
HK$ HKS

B BT

24,867,142 53,451,410

471,569 20,734,655

289,715 204,979
1,677,533 624,051
= 2,537,632

= 1,725,890

Others
R
HK$
BT

90,298,765

6,606,374

2,157,655

342,514

T RNF=ZA=+—H

Total
@t
HK$
B

284,136,082
21,205,522

92,165,806

397,507,410

38,909,353

110,092,551

149,001,904

48,975,324

6,134,030

2,537,632
1,725,890

3,327,080

538,355
169,616
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 8.

(Continued)
Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Provision of healthcare and dental services and
sales of healthcare and pharmaceutical products are
carried out in Hong Kong. Sales of cardiology and
peripheral vascular related surgical equipment are carried
out in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

Hong Kong BB
PRC &

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment, analysed by geographical area in which the
assets are located:

Carrying amount of
segment assets
At 31st March,

PEEEZEREMRE
R=A=+—H
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 212,836,429 257,163,762
PRC s 11,028,056 26,972,320

EBRHEDE (&)

hE 58
AEEBZEBMNRBEBRSP
Bl o REEEEERE LT RRE
REERBREDRER ZED
TIRERBETT - SHEOHEE R
g mEHEINE FilT @Sz
EBARFREREBET -

TR AR B R & 5D
Sl EEBAN (P& M, IR
AR M) -

Sales revenue by
geographical market
RUWETSE T 2HERA

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT AT

246,678,319 183,710,985
28,949,249 47,468,377

275,627,568 231,179,362

LT RREEMEBED N Z
DREEZREENAEYE -
BEREEHEZARE

Capital expenditure
For the year ended
31st March,
EXABX

BE=ZA=1+—-HLEE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT

13,175,478 48,875,074
183,599 100,250

223,864,485 284,136,082

13,359,077 48,975,324
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9. OTHER INCOME

Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income on debt securities

Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on fair value changes on
held for trading investments

Rental income

Sundry income

10. OTHER EXPENSES

Impairment loss recognised in

respect of:

— goodwill arising on acquisition
of associates

— goodwill arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries, and medical and
dental practices

— amounts due from associates

— amounts due from investees

11. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
— Bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years
— Bank overdrafts
— Convertible bonds
— Obligations under finance leases

RITHERZ B WA
B EHZMEWA
XBLmEREZ

B B WA
FIEEBEREZAYE
P &
GEA N

FEEWA

10.

A T IE B R

ZRERBE :

— Wi Z QA
PIREEEE

— KB E AR -
v & T &
ZHmEEE

— BB 2 A R KA

— IR & & R FRIA

11.

UTEBZHE :

—ZARAFRAEH
BREZBTEE

—HRITEX

— AR 75

— R EE A ARE

Hp g A
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
T BT
2,147,216 2,281,435
2,184,720 =
187,486 2,700,265
54,283,180 536,651
2,093,800 664,548
4,119,461 3,663,883
65,015,863 9,846,782
Hibf <
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
588,008 3,327,080
19,747,205 =
956,258 =
- 538,355
21,291,471 3,865,435
BE & A
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2,185,995 377,320
231,478 196,620
1,070,296 1,825,970
3,364 =
3,491,133 2,399,910
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12.

13.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES 12. HEB=ZEQARWE
The amount for the year ended 31st March, 2007 BE_ZEZt+tHF=A=+—H
represents the gain on disposal of the Group’s 11.27% EFEEZRBERERLEEAEER
interest in Core Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited BEEICEIERER AR (BT
(formerly known as Plasmagene Biosciences Limited) BEBEREYMRIEBRAR)
(“Core Healthcare”), a company listed on the GEM Board ([FEREEs] - —RERERFTEl
of the Stock Exchange. ¥R EMZRAE]) 11.27% 7=
2 WiEs o
After completion of the disposal, the Group holds t|j K& 215%@%%%1'@ i
approximately 8% interest in Core Healthcare. The B8 % s o NIETR B L
investment in Core Healthcare was reclassified from Z&QEEEE/\H@‘%%’ATZTEM
interests in associates to available-for-sale investments. EMNEAAHREERE -
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM£
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FR - AEBTEREETZ(N
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining M - ERMASIRMARE
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of B RSB 2 E o I
the directors has waived any emoluments during the year. BEERNETFAREEAMS -
Details of emoluments of individual executive and non- ERIITRIEMITEE KB
executive and independent non-executive directors are FHITES Z2H BB T
set out as below: ™~
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 BEZE-_ZZt&£=H=+—H
IE £ BE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
benefits  Performance contributions Total
Fees HeR bonus BHREF  emoluments
we AR RBRA HE T WemaE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT B
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Choi Ka Yee, Crystal Zmia/i = = = = =
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee EETEL - 1,440,000 - 12,000 1,452,000
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet BREEE - 217,238 - 12,000 229,238
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin EEELRAE 611,511 = = - 611,511
611,511 1,657,238 - 24,000 2,292,749
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chan Kam Chiu RepltE 50,000 - - - 50,000
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, Jp ZEM A THL 50,000 - - - 50,000
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George B ES A 35,000 - - - 35,000
Dr. Frances Choi Chee Ming, Jp  EEBE L £ T4+ = = = = =
135,000 - - - 135,000
Total st 746,511 1,657,238 - 24,000 2,427,749
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EEME (&)
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 BT F=A=+—H
IEFE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
benefits Performance contributions Total
Fees He¢R bonus RKEF  emoluments
we Hi A KR4 STEMR EF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT B
Executive directors HUTEE
Dr. Cho Kwai Chee EETER - 1,440,000 3,350,000 12,000 4,802,000
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet BREBA - 1,347,408 328,314 12,000 1,687,722
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin EEHLAE 1,031,970 - - - 1,031,970
1,031,970 2,787,408 3,678,314 24,000 7,521,692
Non-executive directors FHUTES
Mr. Chan Kam Chiu e gt 50,000 - - - 50,000
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, JP ZEEATHL 50,000 - - - 50,000
Mr. Ho Kwok Wah, George MBEL A 25,000 - - - 25,000
Dr. Frances Choi Chee Ming, Jp £ EHE L 474+ = = = = =
125,000 - - - 125,000
Total st 1,156,970 2,787,408 3,678,314 24,000 7,646,692
14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, no executive director(s) of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 13 above (2006: two).
The emoluments of the five (2006: three) individuals were

as follows:

Salaries and other allowances

Performance bonus (note)

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

e kAR
RBTEAL (M 5E)
RARAE A5 8 4R

AEEREERSHMALSE -
BMERARBRITEEZHEE
N EXF13(Z T RE
ME) s AR (ZTETNF : =
B)EEFWATZBEmT

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT AT
9,336,000 3,419,500
3,405,320 1,632,021
60,000 36,000

12,801,320 4,987,521
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 14.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,500,001/8 7T &£ 2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001% 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001% 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001# 7T £ 3,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

Note: Pursuant to the service agreement entered into between each

of the medical/dental practitioners and the Group, the

practitioners are entitled to a fixed salary and a cash

performance bonus of such amount representing a certain

percentage of the monthly net profit (or, as the case may be,

the monthly turnover) generated by the medical or dental

practices at which he/she provides his/her services. The

percentage is determined with reference to the qualification

and experience of the practitioners, as well as the profitability

of the medical centres at which the practitioners are

practising.

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

— Hong Kong Profits Tax attributable

to the Group

— Underprovision in prior years

Deferred taxation (Note 41)

15.

S H A
—AEERIEERB
B
—EEBRETR
EEFIE (B 7E41)

EEME (&)
HEZMENFIATRE -

2007 2006
Number of Number of
employees employees

BE A BE A
1 3
1 —
2 —
1 —
5 3

FA AKBEYERNEESES
FMALAME - ERIMA
ERMAREBE R 2 2o R
BzmE -

BaE: REsAE TEEAKNEH
RIS 2 Rk - BRI &
SEEHRESREE
AL BRRBAERERS
Z P8 T B2 A AT BRE 2
BHEMN GERBERTE
REZFBNETAEDL - %
B2 ERENERM
K URBERXZER
L 2 0 A K T B E

B H
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
14,908,183 1,765,527
14,557 2,042,042
(236,516) 2,483,594
14,686,224 6,291,163
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

No PRC income tax has been provided in respect of the
Group’s PRC subsidiary since it incurred tax losses for
the year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 41.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

FREeHZH (&)
E\iﬁﬂ’a%}fmuiﬁzméﬂg
X f‘Jﬁzws% —EE R
£ :17.5%) 5t & o

HRFARNEE 2T EMER
BIEARARR » #IEREE
FEMEH -

BB Z FBEN M 541 -

FARARX A REE
Fr o RIS BR T

Y s &

follows:

Profit before taxation

B &% A1 4t A

Tax at the domestic income tax rate ¥ K30 Fr F| 15 5 & 17.5%
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) (ZZZTREFE : 17.5%)
STE 2 FIE
Tax effect of expenses that are not 7 & & &R &1 i £l H-irT—J
deductible in determining MBRTMRETE

taxable profit

Tax effect of income that are not
taxable in determining
taxable profit

Tax effect of tax losses not

ETEERF SN EHE
BRI ANHETE

ARERREABRLZ

recognised HETE
Tax effect of share of results i /NI =¥
of associates 2R
Tax effect of deductible temporary N e TR AT H AR B B
differences not recognised ZTM‘%E/‘
Utilisation of tax losses not ERERAER
previously recognised 2 BiIAEE
Underprovision in prior years TEBETR
Income tax expense for the year REBZFEHRZ

2007 2006
HKS$ HK$

BT B TT
221,470,279 27,739,622
38,757,299 4,854,434
5,089,496 2,911,825
(30,296,430)  (1,843,993)
1,507,469 754,441
479,334 (83,175)
610,996 687,832
(1,476,497)  (3,032,243)
14,557 2,042,042
14,686,224 6,291,163
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

16. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 16. XEERF
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT T
Profit for the year has been 12 s A
arrived at after charging: EMEKRT3IEE :
Staff costs B TRA
— Directors’ remuneration (note 13) —E =B (FT5E13) 2,427,749 7,646,692
— Other staff costs —H i B TR 111,780,644 78,188,021
— Other staff’s retirement benefits —HMB TR
scheme contributions 8 M &t B 3K 2,558,085 1,804,220
116,766,478 87,638,933
Auditor’'s remuneration = EEN BN & 2,334,000 2,065,420
Cost of inventories recognised EERL L 2 FEKAE
as expenses 58,940,589 55,412,957
Depreciation and amortisation of ME - BE
property, plant and equipment NS E R 7,677,972 6,134,030
Impairment loss on slow moving T BRI EEE
inventories (included in (GTASHERA )
cost of sales) 1,650,500 1,725,890
Impairment loss on trade and fﬂﬁlﬁﬁ K K% H A fE U
other receivables (included in FIBZ R EBE
administrative expenses) (EJr AITE R H) 4,976,649 2,537,632
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BE
plant and equipment LB zEBE 395,686 73,639
Net loss on foreign exchange bE B 5 58 309,749 -
Release of prepaid lease payments  #Z B HE & 241,634 169,616
Share of taxation of associates )'Ef’ﬁ B & N BT 18
(included in share of results GPN X —NE]
of associates) E) 765,581 934,097
and after crediting: NEFATFIER :
Gross rental income from REREMEZ
investment properties @S WA 2,093,800 737,795
Less: Direct operating expenses B EAEEE A
that generated rental income ZEBERERT (58,996) (73,247)
Net rental income from REREMEZ
investment properties FHES KA 2,034,804 664,548
Write back of impairment loss 7 [0 fE W BR R K H A
on trade and other receivables JE WK T8 R (B & 18
(included in administrative GrTATTHERZH)
expenses) 632,315 2,398,978
Write back of impairment loss BEFHEFEZ
on slow moving inventories VERI=N SR
(included in cost of sales) (GFASBEKRAH) 2,101,767 1,268,712
Net gain on foreign exchange b 5 M 2 )RR - 152,450
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17. DIVIDENDS 17.

Dividends recognised as distribution AN [ZH#ER A ED K Z & E

during the year Interim — HKnil cents /5] — & & =751l
(2006: HKO0.2 cent) per share ZET NG 0.2/810)

An interim dividend of HK$0.2 cent per share was paid
for the year ended 31st March, 2006. No payment for
final dividend was proposed for years ended 31st March,
2007 and 2006.

A bonus issue of shares on the basis of two shares for
every share held was proposed by the directors and is
subject to the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting.

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based
on the following data:

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of METEEBRER
basic earnings per share |

Number of shares Iz 5 2 B

Weighted average number of M EFRER
ordinary shares for the purposes ARz EiER

of basic earnings per share niEFEHE

i<
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
& 7T S TT
- 9,993,188

EREBE—_TTENF=ZA=T
—RIEFEXNERRD0.25
LR E - WERBERESE
—EELEFR_TETRF=A
S+ BALEEINRER

=1

EFEERTAR EERE

R A — B D R M AR AT A
AERREBRRAS LHE -

BEREAEFN

ARABEBRAREARES
RERBMITIRIAT EES

4
=

el
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT AT

214,850,183 20,030,499

2007 2006

5,143,531,458 4,527,985,666

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 18.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both
years does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds since their exercise would
result in an increase in profit per share.

BREF (&)

RRTEEBRERSEHEK
EAEN HAERMBEFEZE
e 858 2 A A I B RR A Q A
fR R 17 2 2 AT #2 BB 75 1R 88

# .

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BEWHE
HK$
BT
FAIR VALUE D¥E
At 1st April, 2005 R-ZZEZRFMA—H =
Addition NE 25,814,100
Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary W BE K B 2 7 8 BT W B8 4,000,000
Increase in fair value recognised U e 5= R A T E N
in the consolidated income statement 3,781,630
Transfer from property, R - BB &R EEE
plant and equipment 402,581
Transfer from prepaid lease payments B T8 5 18 & - m0 s 5 1,826,689
At 31st March, 2006 R-_EBEEFE=ZA=+—H 35,825,000
Increase in fair value recognised R s R ER A FEE N
in the consolidated income statement 2,300,000
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZEZLtFE=A=+—H 38,125,000

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at the
balance sheet date was arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that day by Larry H.C. Tam &
Associates Ltd., independent professional valuers. Larry
H.C. Tam & Associates Ltd. is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). The valuation, which
conforms to HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties
published by the HKIS, was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The investment properties were under medium-term lease
and situated in Hong Kong. All of the Group’s property
interests in land held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

REREB  AEEZREVMEZ
RNHETIAB L BEXAEES
REZRFEARARNE A
TZREREEFHE - ERMHE
FRFHENER AR BB B A ER
e ([FEHEMBG]) 28
8- ZMETAEEAEMES
Bz BEBREMBEMELE
R WE2ERUMEZTS
EBERX5HE -

BREWENRTHEOFE -
AUREE - IAAKERE
BREBOFAARRESZ
TPz MEERIBAFE
B ERBRERARIER
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20, % -BERR®E
Building
in Hong Kong  Leasehold Furniture
under medium-  improve- and Tools and
term leases ments fixtures Motor  equipment
PHAL e BRR vehicle IEK Total
BEZBF  N%%EH %E RE R ait
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT B BT
COST A
At 1st April, 2005 RZZTHENA-H 2,560,482 24,258,869 418,743 246,592 21,107,924 48,592,610
Additions HE - 3,259,372 649,219 1,447,719 2,417,876 7,774,186
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45 f{ & 2 ] 284,000 279,588 8,413 30,508 76,070 678,579
Disposals HE - (162,662) (25,216) (36,067) (939,000)  (1,162,945)
Transfer to investment ~ BEEZHENE
properties (407,168) - - - - (407,168)
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERNE=A=+—H  2437,314 27,635,167 1,051,159 1,688,752 22,662,870 55,475,262
Additions HhE - 3,479,769 633,204 48,000 4,147,638 8,308,611
Acquisition of subsidiaries M & [f{ B 2 & - - 318,458 147,606 - 466,064
Disposals e - (521,904) (267,950) (54,100) (296,851)  (1,140,805)
Deemed disposal of RIEHERBAR
subsidiaries - (546,377) (254,114) - (339,466)  (1,139,957)
At 31st March, 2007 WZZE+tE=A=1+-H 2437,314 30,046,655 1,480,757 1,830,258 26,174,191 61,969,175
DEPRECIATION AND  HEREH
AMORTISATION
At 1st April, 2005 RZEFRENA-H 209,678 23,376,765 64,115 134,525 9,640,919 33,426,002
Charge for the year ERZH 194,316 1,172,657 248,468 221,143 4,297,446 6,134,030
Eliminated on disposals  {f\ & &l - (21,818) (6,211) (32632)  (242,772) (303,433
Transfer to investment ~ ERZERENF
properties (4,587) - - - - (4,587)
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERE=A=1—H 399,407 24,527,604 306,372 323,036 13,695,593 39,252,012
Charge for the year ERFH 126,512 2,348,014 473,735 437,542 4,292,169 7,677,972
Eliminated on disposals  ( EB## - (311,126) (222,669) (28,853)  (182471)  (745,119)
Eliminated on deemed ~ BIEHENBEATE
disposal of subsidiaries i3 - (5,706) (3,507) - (4,378) (13,591)
At 31st March, 2007 RZZ2tF=f=1-H 525,919 26,558,786 553,931 731,725 17,800,913 46,171,274
CARRYING VALUES KA
At 31st March, 2007 W-ZE+tE=HA=+-H 1,911,395 3,487,869 926,826 1,098,533 8,373,278 15,797,901
At 31st March, 2006 RZEERE=ZA=+—-0 2,037,907 3,107,563 744,787 1,365,716 8,967,277 16,223,250

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the term of
the lease, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Tools and equipment 10 — 331/3%

The carrying value of furniture and fixtures of HK$926,826
includes an amount of HK$228,000 (2006: HK$Nil) in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise leasehold
interest in land in Hong Kong
under medium-term lease

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current asset
Non-current asset

21.

AEB 2 BERK
BEREBETH
HMOBH 2L
ZHE#ES

BhER IR 2 DA

mMBEE
FRBEE

ME - BERRE (B)

HatmE - BB REEER X
BERZERTIEXRFE -

BF
HEMEREE

R REE
RE
TERZE

5%
=FNREE
FH (&)
20%

20%
10—331/3%

R R 55 B 7 BRI (B 4 926,826
BILBEEERERYNFEEZE
EE228,000/8 7T (ZEZ N F

TEIT) °

ANEENK
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
9,751,328 9,992,962
242,180 242,727
9,509,148 9,750,235
9,751,328 9,992,962
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22. GOODWILL

COST

At 1st April, 2005

Acquisitions

Adjustments to measurements for
acquisitions in prior periods (note)

At 31st March, 2006

Acquisitions

Transfer

Adjustments to measurements for
acquisitions in prior periods (note)

At 31st March, 2007
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2005 and

31st March, 2006
Impairment loss recognised

At 31st March, 2007

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st March, 2007

At 31st March, 2006

Note:

BA
RZZZRFMA—H
Wi
BAEDEKETS
ZAE (M)

RZFEF=A=+—H
e

]

BEBFRETE

Z A ()

R-EE+tH&=f=+—-H
BE
R-ZEZREMA—BR
R-_ZEE F=A=F+—H
BREAREESR
R-EE+tH&=f=+-H

BREE
R-EE+tH&=A=1+—-H

RZZEEXF=B=1+—H

Ay

The amounts represented the adjustments to the contingent

consideration for acquisitions in prior periods due to the

compensation from profit guarantee granted by the vendors.

22, EE

Medical and

dental

practices
Subsidiaries BAER Total

KB AR FRPM &%

HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
54,533,386 11,951,251 66,484,637
261,585 10,446,874 10,708,459
(3,929,100) - (3,929,100)
50,865,871 22,398,125 73,263,996
680,210 3,904,192 4,584,402
2,494,155 - 2,494,155
(1,122,600) - (1,122,600)
52,917,636 26,302,317 79,219,953
14,897,071 7,403,320 22,300,391
15,208,641 4,538,564 19,747,205
30,105,712 11,941,884 42,047,596
22,811,924 14,360,433 37,172,357
35,968,800 14,994,805 50,963,605
Mizr : ZERBEBEREARTZ

i M FE R 2 F8 B T B BN 8
EHREEKEZAARERE
hz AR -
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22,

GOODWILL (Continued)

As explained in Note 8, the Group uses business
segments as its primary segment for reporting segment
information. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill have been allocated to four individual cash-
generating units (CGUs), namely, healthcare and dental
services, trading of cardiology and peripheral vascular
related surgical equipment, trading of healthcare and
pharmaceutical products and, provision of design,
promotion, administrative and public relationship services.
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31st March, 2007 allocated to
these units are as follows:

Healthcare and dental services EERER
(“Unit A”): FRHRE (TAZERL]) :
Bright Dignity Limited BABRRA A

Dermatonic Skincare & Laser
Treatment Centre Limited

Town Health Dental Limited RREFEER QT

Town Health Medical & Dental FE {2 B8 &%MW
Services Limited BERA

Pherson Limited Pherson Limited

Silver Ascot Limited REFR A A
Trading of cardiology and peripheral B &0 R & Ei2 M
vascular related surgical R R INELF 1T 28
equipment (“Unit B): ([BEfI) :
Pacific Medical (Holdings) Company  1F ff 5 /& 2 Hxﬁﬁﬁ
Limited and its subsidiaries: REMER

— Pacific Medical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

— Pacific Medical (China)
Company Limited

— Pacific Medical (China)
Group Company Limited

- tBRBRSEMARAR - LBmAE

22.

Dermatonic Skincare & Laser
Treatment Centre Limited

— Pacific Medical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

— Pacific Medical (China)
Company Limited

— Pacific Medical (China)
Group Company Limited

REMBR LA

wE &)

FAAP TSP AL - ANER B IA
BoBRREBRIBENZE
%%iﬁEﬁ#&fé‘t o BUBE R

- EEBOR Efliﬁﬁ
anu GREELEM) -

BEREIITMRSE BB
B K JB 42 I E AR B R A
Ees BEERREMNMERD
ARARHERE  HE - BS
RHEBERS - B’\_ggti

ZA=1T—8 HEEZEFE

f 2B Z REE (kR R
HEEE) T

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT

3,506,779 4,505,953

2,865,648 2,865,648

1,589,700 5,252,612

12,770,734 9,742,193

- 157,033

- 104,552

20,732,861 22,627,991

1,882,398 16,489,934
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22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22.
Trading of healthcare and EEREREm
pharmaceutical products (“Unit C”): ([CEAaL)) :
First Oriental Medical Technology REBRRMBEEEFERAA
Group Limited and its subsidiaries: REKE A E

— First Oriental Medical
Technology Limited
— First Oriental Cyclotron Limited

— First Oriental Medical
Technology Limited
—REBRMRARLQT

Audio Health Hearing Care REIREEER
(Shatin) Limited (PE)BRAA

Provision of design, promotion,
advertising and public relationship J?i? N R
services (“Unit D): ([DERL]) :

Next Dimension Advertising (H.K.) BeReMES (FH)
Company Limited BRA A

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below.

Unit A

The recoverable amounts of CGU of medical and dental
practices have been determined based on value in use
calculations. Those calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a period of 5 years, and discount rate of 11.3%.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculations
is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based
on the CGU’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of HK$5,799,322 in relation to goodwill to CGU of
healthcare and dental services due to the poor
performance of certain medical and dental practices.

g (E)
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
8,366,944 8,366,944
3,015,789 3,478,736
11,382,733 11,845,680
3,174,365 -
37,172,357 50,963,605
L3R B A B 2 AT Uk [B] 2k

MEERTZHEBMRIZM A
mr

AE

ABLRTELH AeELESE
1&274&1@%{%@3%%@%1&
BEFEEE - et E AR TN
EE@E?ﬁtEZﬁEHHWEHE
Zﬁ%/}lbil{l— & &= F
113%295£EW B8 ®
FHFTEZ;’U HEEZEREZA/TE
HEM BEEEMNDEERE
FI$MZ@EE%%EE& i
HhiGER o TAHMER -

FRN BHRETAHABLTED
FTEETE  AEERBER
EERFRRE 2 RESEESEN
72 W R R (B E5185,799,3227%
= -

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR ERR MR
For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTTLF=A=+—HIFE

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22. HE(E)
Unit B and Unit C BEKCE

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs of trading of
cardiology and peripheral vascular related surgical
equipment and trading in healthcare and pharmaceutical
products are based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period
from the acquisition date to 31st March, 2007.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts and CGUs’
past performances. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

BB ORE MEEMmE BN
MFmEaEkEEREER R
BERzHAcELBEM 2 KRE
BEIEREENE - EF
BEFAEZIZRISAHEM
B EEXLAKRBESRE
—EELF=A=+—HHEHE
EERZEERAZAHREL
ZBR -EEESEAERR

BRI HEHERREEZF
ﬁ’%&ﬁ@ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ@
2 BRBUAT L RAG SRR K o
BEXTDIREXZANERERR
BeELABUZBEREE
Rl EEMREERERAZELTS
AT 5B EE P R E ™5 KK
Bl BEREE -

The cash flow forecasts for the CGU of trading in E%‘T%@E%&EDZIE%IZ
healthcare and pharmaceutical products is derived from B2 IR & TEA T IR R A
the most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years %@ﬁt/&z%Xﬂiﬁﬁxﬁ
approved by management using a discount rate of 10.8%. B RITIR*E10.8%5

Cash flow projections of the CGU of trading of cardiology
and peripheral vascular related surgical equipment is
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a period of 5 years, and cash flows from 5th to
10th year period are extrapolated by assuming no growth
rate and discount rate of 12.6%. Cash flow projections
during the budget period for the CGU are also based on
the expected gross margins during the budget period and
the same raw materials price inflation during the budget
period. Budgeted gross margins and raw material price
inflation have been determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of HK$14,607,536 and HK$462,947 in relation to goodwill
to CGU of trading of cardiology and peripheral vascular
related surgical equipment, and trading of healthcare and
pharmaceutical products due to adverse market change
in the industries.

BEEORERESEDEMRBRF
MEENREEESML2RE
MEEAEERNKCEEELE
ZhEHENPEESE A
Z+FHEN ENRERE R
fRE&W &L R R K AT HE X
12.6%HEET - M EEBURN
TE & BAfE MY IR & 7 = TE ORI IR i
ERTBEEHRE2BRERNRTE
HHME 2 ERRE EERE -
BEENRRHERBED R
BAERAREREEEMSEER
ZTEEAMEE o

FRN - AREBEITEMSBEE
THE M  AXEEREE LM
B & B2 B AR F irEEs A
&Ei%{%@}%uu&iuuzfﬁi
EEBEMN2EZED R ER
14,607,536 7T 2 462,947 JT
ZRAEEE -
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)
Unit D

22.

The recoverable amounts of CGU of provision of design,
promotion, advertising and public relationship services are
based on value in use calculations. Those calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a period of 5 years,
and discount rate of 10.7%. Another key assumption for
the value in use calculations is the budgeted gross margin,
which is determined based on the CGU’s past performance

and management’s expectations

development.

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in associates:
— Listed
— Unlisted

Share of post-acquisition profits

Market value of listed shares at the
balance sheet date

for the market

23.

REEE R A 2 EKAK
— Lk
— L™

& A6 W BB 1% 01 )

ERBEOREEB
ZWiE

e (&)

DE

RIEF  EE -  EERAH
RIS 2B & E A B 2 Al E
BEDNERNFERAEAENESE
EeolstEAXTIUAEEER
WEZAFHRBE2 RS
MEFERETF10.7%.2 8538
X8 - HEFRAEEZS —
FAEERZATEEEH @ BE
EADHRERECELEBMZB
FREREEEHTESREZ
TBHAmEERT o

RBEQT 2EEH
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
- 2,893,060
13,610,893 15,337,126
3,879,975 2,975,336

17,490,868 21,205,522

- 5,249,687
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. REBEQATzZER (&)
Included in the cost of investments in associates is WEBEAREEZEE S
goodwill of HK$7,777,785 (2006: HK$8,899,245) arising 7,777,7858 L (ZZE T /N F ¢
on acquisition of associates. The movement of goodwill 8,899,245/ 7T ) st AR EE & A
is set out below. AIREZ AT - a2z EE)

AT
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
& T 7S IT
COST B 7R
At 1st April K AH—H 36,292,815 31,487,703
Arising on acquisitions W B2 BT 15 1,960,703 4,805,112
Transfer (note) 2 (M) (2,494,155) =
Eliminated on disposal i & B 9 55 (15,514,103) -
At 31st March R=A=+—H 20,245,260 36,292,815
IMPAIRMENT AR
At 1st April Rl A—H 27,393,570 24,066,490
Impairment loss recognised BEHERBEBE 588,008 3,327,080
Released upon disposal & 1% # [0 (15,514,103) =
At 31st March R=A=+—H 12,467,475 27,393,570
CARRYING AMOUNT R T B
At 31st March W=R=+—8 7,777,785 8,899,245
During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the directors of RBE_ZTZTLF=A=1+—
the Company reviewed the carrying value of the Group’s HIEFE SR ETHEZE AR
associates in view of the poor performance of certain KRN E  ARAIESEEH
associates. The recoverable amounts of these associates ZlS’E Bt E AR ZREE © it
are determined with reference to the estimated future cash L& A Al 2 AT B 5K EE T K
flows using a discount rate of 11.3%. Accordingly, ﬁﬁﬂ 3% Bl 35 & 5T & (& 51 EI
impairment loss of HK$588,008 (2006: HK$3,327,080) was ‘RIEEMEMETE - AUk -
identified and charged to the consolidated income R 5 #588,0088 L (= F
statement. NE 3,327, 080/ 7T) Z/UME
EE - WE RS W= T A
Note: On 29th September, 2009, the Group increased its interest MizE: RZFEZAFAA=ZT A
in Next Dimension Advertising (H.K.) Limited (“Next B KRB EMERE
Dimension”) from 40% to 65% and accordingly, it becomes a ReHES (BB ERAA
subsidiary of the Group and the corresponding goodwill is ([BheofRem]) 2
transferred to goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 40%3E £60% Bt - ZA
in note 22. AKX AREE 2B RQF R

1B FE T B A W I Tk 22

PR 2 B ARESE 2
&=,
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTLF=A=1+—HIFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. REEQATzER (&)
Group’s associates is set out below: N SJEN: /N D = B
ZHEFOT
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total assets EERE 83,289,808 69,559,997

Total liabilities

BEMAE

(68,216,892)

(28,447,445)

Net assets BEFE 15,072,916 41,112,552
Group’s share of net assets NEEEGHE A A

of associates ZEERE 9,713,083 12,306,277
Revenue W &5 109,466,163 42,952,614
Profit (loss) for the year FE AN (EE) 1,063,212 (781,208)
Group’s share of results of REEEGEHE A A

associates for the year ZEEHEE 2,739,050 (475,284)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of $’$IE”JJ:EE§7J/H\FTE%TJF

losses of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised ﬁﬁ BRARIZEE @BHakE

share of those associates, extracted from the relevant NAE 2B S EZY W%k
audited financial statements or management accounts of EEERE CAREREGEZZH
associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as ERRZHREB(RFEERZRR)

follows: HH T -
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT & TT
Unrecognised share of losses N4 [Z & fE R
of associates for the year FEMGEE & ARl 2 EE (1,923,910) (850,873)
Accumulated unrecognised 25 AR
share of losses FE(L B & A R 2 B B
of associates (4,246,068) (2,322,158)

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31st March,

2007 are as follows:

Name of company
NEAMH

Advance Bond Limited
FEERDA

Bess Dental Services
Limited
BEFRIREER A A

Goldwell Investment
Holdings Limited
CERESEERAA

Hong Kong Health Check
(note)

e v AGEY

JFA Town Health Limited
ERT—RREE
EEERAA

Long Faith International
Limited
EERER DA

NSA Far East Limited
ZHRERBRDA

NSA Life Sciences Limited
ZRETRBRARLDA

Form of
business structure
E¥BEREN

Incorporated

A 1Mt B 3L

Incorporated
& B L

Incorporated

aE Ak L

Incorporated
BRIl Av

Incorporated
M K 32

Incorporated
BRIIAY)

Incorporated
BRIl Av

Incorporated
AT K 32

Place of
incorporation

1 B 3L it B
Hong Kong

Bt

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
&R

Bermuda
BRE

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
Bt

23. REBEQATz2ER (8)
AEBZIEHLATNR T
E+F=ZA=1+—"HZHMAE
BT -

Attributable
proportion of
nominal value

of issued capital
indirectly held
by the Group
AARBEEREZ
ERTRAEE
Z AL LBl

49%

49%

49%

50%

40%

39.2%

49%

Principal activities
TEEH

Operation of medical
clinics in Hong Kong
EERRERBDM

Provision of dental
services to dental
card holders

MIBREEREA
R T B RE R

Operation of medical
clinics in Hong Kong
ERBRERBLM

Provision of healthcare
and medical checks
services

REBERRERBRRE

Tendering for corporate
medical services
BRAABERE

Operation of a medical
clinic in Hong Kong
ERRERED M

Distribution of healthcare
products

DHERBER

Investment holding

BERR
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. RBERTRzZRERE (&)

Attributable
proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
indirectly held
by the Group

Form of Place of ANABEREZ
Name of company business structure incorporation ERTRAEE
NE AW EEEBEN 1R B AL 3t B Z B Al
Pak On Medical Company Incorporated Hong Kong 49%
Limited & A L BB
RZBRAERD
Smart Vision (Asia) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 49%
MG (EM) BR A A BRIl A BB
Star Shine Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 49%
REARRA MK 3z BE
Union Crown International Incorporated Hong Kong 25%
Limited Bl B8
REERERAA
Note: On 23rd February, 2006, the Group subscribed convertible sk -

bonds amounting to HK$60,000,000 issued by Hong Kong
Health Check. The convertible bonds, if converted, will give
the Group 35.75% voting power over Hong Kong Health
Check. Based on the management’s assessment, the
currently exercisable convertible bonds of HK$60,000,000
provides the Group the potential voting rights in Hong Kong
Health Check which in turn provide the Group the ability to
exercise significant influence on Hong Kong Health Check.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, financial statements of Hong Kong Health Check were
equity accounted for in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standards 28 “Investments in Associates”. Since
the Group has no present equity interest in Hong Kong Health
Check, no results and assets and liabilities of Hong Kong

Health Check were shared by the Group.

Principal activities

IREHK

Operation of medical
clinics in Hong Kong

EEEREREDM

Provision of photographic
design and related
services for new-born
babies

REERR M

TRt MR RS

Trading in teeth
whitening products

EEFEXHEM

Provision of medical
diagnostic services

R B RD B R

:\\ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ&m#%’*
ﬁZ‘HﬁHﬂ #%3%£60,000,000
T o WA - RS AT
BEEBBRFAEEBRBE S
B21R35.75% 2 R 2 o IRE
EEEZFMG  BEAITE
2 ] #% (&% £60,000,000/%
T A AN B R 4 EAfgﬁﬂf@
ZBERERE  MESE
2%$%%%Léi§iﬂ;%$ﬁﬁ
FERYEEZEN - RiFE
AEBZIRAMBIREKE
EABRIMBERERBRES
e ERF 285 [ 2 A
Tz&éjw*‘ﬁz)\,ﬁf? E3]
REBMBRETEAESER
HERAEZD  MAEEL
ROEBBERZEERE
ELRARE-

In the opinion of the directors, the above associates have BB B ATEA
a significant effect on the results or assets of the Group. CEEYEENEEEEATE o
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion BEED A S| HpBLEAT

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. TEKBEIERBRTE -

EX

IRZERBRAT
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24,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprises:

Listed securities:
— Equity securities
Unlisted securities:
— Equity securities (note a)
— Debt securities (note b)
Less: Impairment loss recognised

Notes:

&S
—HEm %
#tmﬁﬁ
—EmFESF (Mita)
— BB &S (f3Eb)
B EERBEEE

(a) The above unlisted investments represent investments in

unlisted equity securities. They are measured at cost less

impairment at each balance sheet date because the range of

reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the

directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair

values cannot be measured reliably.

24.

AHERE
AHERERE
2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
& T BT
2,428,750 -
2,225,103 4,413,142
48,589,367 -
- (755,190)
53,243,220 3,657,952
Hi3E -
(@) ERIEEHRERRNIEL
TRABSZRE - RBA
Toid & 4 B B R AR AR R

AR OHDEREABRRATE
hEr 2 BEBK - RQRE
ERERQNTETEER ST

=

= °
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24,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

On 23rd February, 2006, the Group subscribed the
Convertible Bonds | with an aggregate amount of
HK$60,000,000 from Hong Kong Health Check, convertible
bonds at interest of 1% per annum payable semi-annually
with maturity on 22nd February, 2010. The Group can
exercise the conversion option at any time until the maturity
date. The conversion price is HK$0.041 per share. The
Convertible Bonds | can be redeemed at 100% of the
respective outstanding principal amount, together with their
unpaid interest on maturity date. Hong Kong Health Check is
a public limited company with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange. Hong Kong Health Check is entitled at its sole
discretion by giving not less than 30 days notice to the Group
to redeem all Convertible Bonds | at the principal amount at
any time after the date of issue of Convertible Bonds |
together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

On 3rd October, 2006, Hong Kong Health Check further
issued the Convertible Bonds Il of an aggregate principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.041
to third parties which were also immediately convertible. Upon
conversion of both Covertible Bonds | by the Group and
Convertible Bonds Il by those third parties, the Group’s
ownership interest in Hong Kong Health Check will be diluted
to 35.75%.

As explained in Note 3, Hong Kong Health Check ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Group following the issuance of the
Convertible Bond Il. As the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded conversion option and the issuer’s
early redemption option are not closely related to those of
the host contract, they are separately accounted for as
derivatives and measured at fair value. The Group has
classified all the debt element of the convertible bonds as
available-for-sale investment. The fair values of the debt
element and the derivatives are determined by the directors
of the Company with reference to the valuation performed by
GCAL.

24, AHERE (&)

5

(%)

RZEERF_AZ+=
A AEBERESEBRRABE
42 & %8 /4 60,000,000/% 7T 2
AMBRES - ZEFR=-F
—ZTE_A-_+_-AFH -
FREAB1%  B¥EFZHF—
RFE - REBERRE A
AT {F ] B ) 17 5% MR AR HE o
HRE R EAR0.041F T ° 7]
AR & 17 AR B A B A &
BAREZEARESEZ100%E R
MARZAFZF SR - FF
BRA—BARBRAA

HRHDREER LT - &4
ERERBTAERNAEE
BHTALOR=TBz@EAM
R AR E 51217 B #i1& (F
o] B R 7K & BB & 8] 2 26 7]
BRER - WX HHELEE

EMEE B2 RS -

RZZEZERFE+HA=H" &
BRBE-—TME=F BT
7N & 48 %8 /40,000,000 7T
2R ERI - BEE AT
§%0.0417 7T © AR EFII
AN EE i o AN @ SRR Al
R EH IR B =77 TR A
BEHINZERE - AEBER
BEBIRZATA & s
>§7,%35.75% o

WM TE3ATER - BAABRN A
BIREH BT ZBKEIERE
SEMBAR - ARASFR
MR 2 i8R R BB A 2
BITAREEDFRESEE
BRWIEBRTRE  MED
AEATTETAZES AR
FEFE - AEEHB AR
BEHZE2BEHHH DA
AAHERE - BHEIMH K
PTEIAZAFETBEAA
REFREERERTZMAE
mEE °

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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24,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24.

(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The gain upon subscription of Convertible Bonds | in respect
of the derivative elements prior to 3rd October, 2006, was
not taken up as Hong Kong Health Check was consolidated

as a subsidiary of the Group.

On 3rd October, 2006, Hong Kong Health Check further
issued the Convertible Bonds Il of an aggregate principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.041
to third parties which were also immediately convertible. Upon
conversion of both Convertible Bonds | by the Group and
Convertible Bonds Il by those third parties, the Group’s
ownership interest in Hong Kong Health Check will be diluted
to 35.75%.

The movement of the fair values of the components of
Convertible Bonds | since 3rd October, 2006 is set out below:

AHERE (&)
Mzt : (&)
(b) (%)

HREBEREGZE AKT
EAEBEZHEBERR - R
—ZEERETRA=ZHAMT
£ RE AT IRIREFIFE
Z Wm0 AR A

R=ZTZETAE+A=H" &
;’&m*ﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬂgo 0417 T M
EZFE—TETEEASE
40,000,000;%m2ﬂ}$<ﬁx1:a
#HI| - A B AR AR &2 5 A A
RREEin o RAKEEERAR
AN e =g )
BRREHINE  NEBRES
R ARSI REER
35.75% °

—EEARETAS AR
BEERIBORTEL B

ERETIAT ¢

Conversion Early

Debt option redemption
element element element Total
aEHR BRERG REEEHH fi
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 3rd October, 2006 —“ZT FTA=H 46,752,430 36,174,685 (35,812) 82,891,303
Effective interest income ERFSRA 1,843,475 - - 1,843,475
Increase in fair value AFEEM (6,538) 146,230,710 (877,027) 145,347,145
As at 31st March, 2007 “FT+FE=A=+-H 48,589,367 182,405,395 (912,839) 230,081,923
The gain on the conversion option recognised during the FANERZ F20166,343,042

year amounting to HK$166,343,042 represents the difference
between the carrying value as at 3rd October, 2006 of the
equity component of the Convertible Bonds | recognised by
Hong Kong Health Check in its convertible bonds reserve of
HK$16,062,353 (see also Note 46) and the fair value of the
conversion option at 31st March, 2007 of HK$182,405,395.

VST 2 R R U e T B B
RN —_TEZXETA=BZ
AR EFH IR AN S5 2 R E
816,062,353/ 7T (R M 7t
46) M—TTLF=A=+—
BEmImRESIZATE
182,405,395/ JufHl 2 = %8 ©
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of
the convertible bonds are as follows:

(1) Valuation of debt component

The fair value of debt element was calculated based on the
present value contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the required yield, which was determined
with reference to the credit rating of the convertible bonds
issuer and remaining time to maturity. The effective interest
rate of the debt component at 3rd October, 2006 and 31st
March, 2007 are 8.65% and 8.29% respectively.

(2) Valuation of conversion option element
Binomial model is used for valuation of conversion option
element. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Stock price fi% 18
Conversion price BB
Volatility R S
Dividend yield R B WA
Option life AR AR
Risk free rate 2 2 i | 2=

Volatility of the stock price was estimated by the average
annualised standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on several comparable
companies of Hong Kong Health Check’s stock price.

(3) Valuation of early redemption element

The fair value of the early redemption element is the
difference in the values of conversion option with the early
redemption and without the early redemption.

24, TWHERSE (&)

BfsE - ()

(b)

(&
MR ESGERERZS
ARBRAOT

(1) BEEBHZEHE
BEBHEPZAFLEERE LD
BEZARREREERT
WHRFR2BEFLE - K
RIBERENELEABRR
BEHFEBHTAGRIRERET
EEMZEEMETE - R=
EEXNE+AZHR-_ZEE
+tE=ZA=1+—REHHH
ZEBRF XD R A8.65% K
8.29% ©

(2) BIRER G 2 hE
AR AR AR B
ZAEME o s AZER 2 BUE
W

3rd October 31st March,
2006 2007
RZTBERF R-ZBELHF
+A=H =B=+-H
HK$0.108 HK$0.226
0.1087 7T 0.2267% T
HK$0.04 HK$0.04
0.047% 7T 0.04% 1T
33.12% 41.75%

3.4 years 3 years
3.4%F 3F
3.80% 3.90%

BRENREREEEERR
AEALBRRARZREZFE
EHES R FHERERE
PRIEET ©

(3) REBE#ERHZMHEE
REBLOEDHZATFER
FRRFEEREHEERTEED
HRREREEEZEZSE -

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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25. DEPOSITS PAID ON ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31st March, 2007, the deposits are paid by the Group
in connection with the acquisition of certain advanced
medical equipment for future expansion. The related
capital commitments are set out in note 49.

26. INVENTORIES

Pharmaceutical supplies L)

Health food REZR m

Healthcare equipment BERE

Dental materials and supplies TR

Isotope for medical uses EEARAME

Cardiology and peripheral vascular OB B S R
related surgical equipment 18 B AN 1l 1% 28

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JE I BR 5K
Less: accumulated impairment o BETEE
Deposits i

Other receivables H fth & W 518
Prepayments T8~ 5RIE

25. BWHWE MERREX
tz®&E
R-TEtF=A=+-8
ARERUEETEEBRR
B A A R IR R T 32
© o M ERA A RIE BRI A

49 °
26. 7K

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT

3,762,491 3,162,642

4,012,418 -

877,433 540,243

412,111 165,812

381,196 262,140

4,332,348 9,651,952

13,777,997 13,782,789

27. EWERMR KR H Mt EKRE

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT AT

35,783,456 23,478,374
(6,640,533) (2,296,199)

29,142,923 21,182,175
11,996,779 11,413,337
8,458,222 10,591,536
2,045,077 6,373,095

51,643,001 49,560,143
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. FEWERFR K H b fE U Fx 3
(&)
Notes: B 5E
a. Most of the patients of the medical and dental practices settle a. BERERTBRE 2 RNHBHRE
in cash. Payments by patients using medical cards will ARBEIN - EFRBER
normally be settled within 180 to 240 days. The Group allows XAt 2w A — RN 180F 240
an average credit period of 60 to 240 days to its trade AAKE - REBRHE M
customers under other business activities. B2 B8 5% FPiEMHt60£240H
ZFHEER -
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the FEMZ BORANEER 2K
balance sheet date: EOMT :
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 60 days 0OH —60H 15,621,024 11,249,713
61 — 120 days 61H —120H 8,278,161 3,964,888
121 — 180 days 121H —180H 4,297,058 2,998,540
181 — 240 days 181H —240H 1,500,406 3,546,680
241 — 360 days 241H —360H 2,866,369 888,366
Over 360 days 360H A 3,220,438 830,187
35,783,456 23,478,374
b. The Group’s trade and other receivables included b. 7N 55 [ 0k BR SR % E i B U
HK$6,085,060 (2006: HK$8,632,906) that is denominated in X IE B 356,085,060/ 7T (—
Renminbi (“RMB”). TN ¢ 8,632,906/ 1)
NARBEBZHIE °
28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 28. MEUEEE QB RIE

The amounts at 31st March, 2007 and 2006 are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

At 31st March, 2007, the balance includes accumulated
allowances for amounts due from associates of

HK$6,254,916 (2006: HK$5,298,658).

e

N—EELERN T RE=
A=+—HzREREHKF
RERBERERER -

R_ZTZTLE=F=+—8 -
EHRBIEERE L NRIRIBLZ
R 5T B 156,254,916/8 T (==
27& 5,298,658/ L) °

77

“NH
113

EX

IRZERBRAT
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEES

Amounts due from investees
Less: Impairment loss for amounts
due from investees

R ZREREE

The amounts due from investees are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates

FEU I IR B N B Z KA
B BRRERERBZ

29.

30.

Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung &

(note a) Associates ([ff £ a)
True Destination Limited True Destination Limited
(note b) (B 5% b)

First Oriental Nuclear Medicine First Oriental Nuclear

Limited (note c)

Notes:

(a) The partners of Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates are
employee-doctors of the Group. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Dr.
Fung Yip Tong, Bennet, directors of the Company, are also
partners of that partnership.

(b) The ultimate holding company of an associate of the Group,
Health Matrix International Limited.

(c) A company in which Dr. Yeung Wah Hin, Alex (“Dr. Yeung”)
is a director and shareholder. Dr. Yeung is also a director of
First Oriental Cycloton Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. The maximum balance during the year was
HK$437,100 (2006: HK$437,100).

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Medicine Limited (Fffzkc)

EW#HEEQF Z2RE
2007 2006
HKS$ HK$
7B T BT
1,287,500 1,221,705
- (538,355)
1,287,500 683,350

EWHEIRE RB Z FASELR
2B RBRERER -

B BN BRI
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT B IT
2,425,962 4,058,265
10,530 =
409,950 437,100
2,846,442 4,495,365

Mt 5 -

(a) Dr. Cho, Chan, Fung &

AssociatesZ & % A B &
BrzEBEBE  ARBES
BEFRARBRBERAEN
BRZEEBLEZEEBA -

(b) Health Matrix International
Limited 7 78 % [ 2 Bt & 2 7]
ZERBERAF] °

(c) HEREE([BEE]) AR
RAIZEEZRRE - BEED
& First Oriental Cycloton
Limited (RRIZ 2 EMB A
AZEE - PNFER - BEiR2
&= /437,100 T (=%
TN ¢ 437,100%7T) °

RHRREER RENERE
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31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO MINORITY 31.
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A DIRECTOR 32.

Directors’ current accounts/loans to officers disclosed
pursuant to section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:

FER RSB A A D BUR
RZFE

ZERERBERR  RERRA

HERERE -

Bl —BEERE

BIEBERAEFE161BH =
ZEERYER BERTEHK
BEHIMT :

Balance Maximum

at amount

1.4.2006 outstanding
RZ=ZZZ/XF during the year

mA—H FRNEE
2EB  REESE
HK$ HK$
B B
950,000 950,000

Balance
at
31.3.2007
R=-ZZLHF
Director/officer Terms of loan =HA=+—H
BEx mAEE B R4 2R
HK$
BT
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet Unsecured and
(Director) non-interest bearing,
g g repayable on demand
(B=%) BEERLRE
RIREREE -
The amount was fully settled during the year.
33. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS S

FAIR VALUE A¥EE
Listed equity securities in BAE LM ZBRAES
Hong Kong

The fair values of the equity securities held for trading
are determined based on the quoted market bid prices
available on the Stock Exchange.

ZREERFATBRAEN -

KERERE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT

21,021,288 22,929,500

FIEEERABS ZAFET
RIBAI R B XS Z TR E
tREET -

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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34. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE BONDS/EARLY REDEMPTION
OPTION EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Unlisted conversion options EETARKRES
embedded in convertible bonds FIT B 2 42 AR #E

Unlisted early redemption option  3F E i a] # % (&5
embedded in convertible bonds FIT b 2 42 5 & B 4

As at 31st March, 2007, conversion options and early
redemption option embedded in convertible bonds
represent the conversion option element and early
redemption feature of the Convertible Bonds | subscribed
by the Group respectively. The fair values of the unlisted
convertible bonds are determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by
GCAL (see Note 24).

35. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amount represents deposits pledged to lenders to
secure facilities granted to the Group. The deposits have
been pledged to secure short-term other borrowings and
are therefore classified as current assets.

The deposits carry interest rate which ranges from 3.4%
to 4.10% (2006: 1.5% to 4.1%) per annum. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant borrowings.

34.

35.

AR E SRR E T
BRESFEEERZ
2007 2006

HK$ HK$

5T T
182,405,395 -
(912,839) -

R—ZEZE+F=A=+—8 -
A] 2 B8 & 25 AT B L AR A R B B
BEO#ESFEAEERE 2T
BRESFIZBRELDS RIER
BRI - E LA MR ES
ZAFETHARREEZTLR
EEATZGEEE (FRME
24) o

EEFRTER

ZRBARKEMEETAKH
ZREBRTETZHER - &%
7 73X B B ER 1S 22 B L At 8 SR 4
HER AUEBEARDE
o

ZIETIENFIAET41E (=
TENFE ALEEL41E) 2 F
P B - BEFRITFERE
REEEBEEREDR -
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36. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the
Group and bank balances that bear interest at prevailing
market rates ranging from 1.5% to 5% (2006: 0.5% to
4.1%) per annum and have original maturity of three
months or less.

37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (note) JE A5 BR 3k (Bt &)
Other payables H b & - 5K IR
Accruals EstE A

Note:

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date:

0 - 60 days OH —60H

61 — 120 days 613 —120H
121 — 240 days 121H —240H
Over 240 days 240H M £

36. WMITHEBEERS

RITEBREReBREASER
EZ2Be UERRBHAAE=
ERAARLIZI5EESE (=
TRNF  0.5EF41E) 2|17
MSEMEGF B ZRITER ©

37. ENRFEREMESRE

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

T BT
17,400,076 18,127,828
8,722,426 5,507,406
14,931,711 15,274,119
41,054,213 38,909,353

B 5T

HRZENEFREDTAOT

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT
9,115,326 6,607,492
5,895,877 10,475,403
2,388,873 1,044,933
17,400,076 18,127,828

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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38. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

Weissford Development B fE B R
Limited (note a) BRA A (HsEa)
Kowloon Hearing Services NEBE RS

Limited (note b) AR A A (M Eb)

Notes:

(a) A company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Mr. Cho Kwai

Yee, Kevin are directors and have beneficial interests.

(b) A company in which Mr. Lai Kwok Fai is a director and
shareholder. Mr. Lai Kwok Fai is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company, Audio Health Hearing Care
(Shatin) Limited.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank overdrafts RITEX
Trust receipt loan EE B E K
Bank loans RITE X
Analysed as: pal i
Secured A &
Unsecured 4K

38.

898

FEAMEBREATZRE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
T BT

607,599 =

307,260 =

914,859 =

it

(a) BEETRBAEREEELEAR
FEEVREFREEE o E
WZRA e

(b) EREAEHEEERRR
RzRAmE - BEEXLETS
ARAAMBRARREREES #
B(WHRERARZES -

ERREARER %8 RA
REREE -

RITRHMBEER

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

AT BT
823,818 793,180
249,600 240,000
51,949,035 61,575,444
53,022,453 62,608,624
27,772,853 26,822,559
25,249,600 35,786,065
53,022,453 62,608,624
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39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 39.

Carrying amount repayable:

Within one year or on demand —FAHIRER
In the second year FF

In the third year F=4F

In the fourth year kk@i

In the fifth year FRF

Over five years tBiE A F

B BERRBEER
R—FRIHA 2L

Less: Amount due within one year
included under current liabilities
Amount due after one year R—FREBP S
The Group has variable-rate borrowings on bank loans
which carry interest at prime rate less 2.8% to 1.5% per

annum (2006: prime rate less 2.5% to 3.5%). Interest is
repriced every year.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings
are as follows:

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate borrowings

P FI X
/; N ﬁ%g

As at 31st March , 2006, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings included HK$33,760,439 (2007: nil) that is
denominated in RMB.

During the year, the Group obtained loans from banks in
the amount of HK$68,333,490. The proceeds were for
general working capital purpose of the Group.

ARTIHFHERZEE :

RITREMER (F)

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT
29,734,414 37,487,642
1,929,287 1,801,359
2,039,724 1,909,915
2,156,487 2,024,378
2,212,899 2,145,596
14,949,642 17,239,734
53,022,453 62,608,624

(29,734,414)

(37,487,642)

23,288,039

25,120,982

AEBHEAFRBRITERE

B I BEREEFERF2.8E
Z15E (ZEEZRF  HxE
Eﬂ¥7ﬁ22 S5EZE3.5E) 2 F A
EHE - MNEBFEREE —
//\ ©

AEBEEZERMNE (TER

BHOME)EEMT

2007

5.2% to 6.3%
5.2E£6.3E

2006

2.7% 10 5.7%
27E£5.7FE

RZBZERE=ZA=+—8 "
AEEBZETREMERLH
B4533,760,43978 7T (T T+
FE)AUARKBEE -

FR - AEERBITRENE
7X68,333,490/8 T ° FT15 7 IAE
EARAEEz —REESE

N
G
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40.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its furniture and
fixtures under finance leases. The average lease term is
3 years. Interest rates underlying all obligations under
finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates at
1.242% per annum. No arrangements have been entered

into for contingent rental payments.

Amounts payable under
finance leases

Within one year

[n more than one year but
not more than two years

In more than two years but
not more than three years

Less: future finance charges

Present value of lease obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement within
twelve months (shown under
current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after
twelve months

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured

MEANTZ
EREE:

—%R
BB FETAREF

BBMFETR=F

B ARBEER

RAEEZRE
WeTZEAR
HHEN 2 FE

GIRRBRET)

T-EARE SR
LB

by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

40. ®MEHNRE

BREAKEZERE  AKEZ
HETERMEEEDREREMR
WEHE FPHOEBR=F -&
BHAOTZMAREZHET
KR EERH B RKREF1.242
EWEE - WESHATEEREA
RIS AR ZHE ©

Present value of

Minimum minimum lease payments
lease payments RERA
REANMR AR 2RE
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT
45,600 = 45,600 =
45,600 = 45,041 =
34,200 = 33,366 =
125,400 - 124,007 -
(1,393) - N/A N/A
124,007 - 124,007 -
(45,600) =
78,407 -

AEEZBEBEOEETAL
MARBEEE 2 iR

oo
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41.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

41.

Accelerated tax
depreciation and

BEEBEEE
RERNREEMBERAZEEER
EHEEE(BE) RAZSHMN
T

revaluation

of investment

properties

MEHE Tax

FERER losses Others Total
RENE HEEE Hith &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1st April, 2005 R-Z2TRFNA—H 915,353 (56,233) - 859,120
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A 655,628 = - 655,628
Charge (credit) to income for the year ma GA) EERA 3,724,100  (1,100,936) (139,570) 2,483,594
At 31st March, 2006 W-EEXE=ZF=+—H 5205081  (1,157,169) (139,570) 3,998,342
Charge (credit) to income for the year ne GrA) EEKBA (1,273,157) 1,124,061 (87,420) (236,516)
At 31st March, 2007 RZBELE=B=1-H 4,021,924 (33,108) (226,990) 3,761,826

At 31st March, 2007, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$25,410,918 (2006: HK$31,657,141) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses of HK$189,188 (2006:
HK$6,612,394).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax losses of HK$25,221,730 (2006:
HK$25,044,747) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams and may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st March, 2007, the Group has deductible temporary
differences associated with specific provision on trade
receivables and inventories of HK$9,125,366 (2006:
HK$5,633,960). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to HK$7,828,280 (2006:
HK$4,836,417) of such deductible temporary difference
as it is uncertain that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

R-_EE+L&=A=+—8 "
NEE[E B 425,410,918/ 7T (=
TENEE 31,657,141/ 7L) &
BAFBEENTBEKEAR
Al o B BL A 20189,188/8 7T
(ZZZT <% : 6,612,394/5 1)
ZEBRRECHBEE -

R EETER B 12 2% F 3K
R WESL R T B IEEE
25,221,7308 T (ZEE/NF ¢
25,044,747 T) HERIELEF IR
BE - WA ERHAGE -

R-EZ+F=A=+—8 -
AEBEHERERERGTERTE
BERE TN EREEEA
9,125,366/ L (T /)N 4F ¢
5,633,960/ 7T) ° H A AT
TE 1% B FE & Bt om K1 BT B R 8H
AT HUR S Ry =58 - W E L%
% 587,828,280 L (2
JNEF 1 4,836,4178 ) 2 A1 0
BREREZHERRELCHESE
E;E o
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42.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 2nd February, 2005, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with an independent placing agent in
relation to the placing of up to HK$32,000,000 2.5%
convertible bonds due 2007, to independent third parties.
On 11th April, 2005, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$32,000,000 convertible bonds were issued. The
convertible bonds can be converted into ordinary shares
in the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.037 per
share, subject to adjustment, at the option of the
bondholders, at any time between the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and 90 days prior to the maturity date
on 10th April, 2007. If the bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed on 10th April, 2007 at par. Interest
of 2.5% will be paid half yearly in arrears on 31st March,
and 30th September in each year. The effective interest
rate is 7.77%.

The HK$32,000,000 2.5% convertible bonds were fully
converted from 22nd April, 2005 to 23rd May, 2005 by 11
bondholders. A total of 864,864,864 shares were allotted
and issued for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

On 30th August, 2005, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with an independent placing agent for the
purpose of arranging subscribers for the issue of 2.5%
convertible bonds due 2007/2008, on a best effort basis,
up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in
two tranches. As at 31st March, 2006, “Tranche 1 Bonds”,
representing 2.5% convertible bonds due 2007 up to an
aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000 had been
issued in full. Up to 28th February, 2006, no subscribers
have been procured to subscribe on the “Tranche 2
Bonds”, representing 2.5% convertible bonds due 2008
up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000.
According to the placing agreement, the placing for the
Tranche 2 Bonds was ceased and terminated and thus
the whole Tranche 2 Bonds were not issued.

42.

ARERES
RZEBEZRF-_A=-H AR
A —Z RS NI LA
EWE RABYFE=ARER
% 3% 32,000,000/% T 2 2.5/E A]
BmRES - ITBRREFNZZ
ZHFEHE - R REFEN
A+—HB BRTAcLEH
32,000,000/8 T 2 A # K& &
5o AIRRESFAIIERKRES
1%0.0377% 7T (F] TR %) Eia 5
AAREREKR  BEFEFEAT
BENATRRESZITESHESE
FHA (2= FWA+H)
AT90 B A E {a] B 7S WA o fif
BEHEAREER AR _ZF
+tEFOA+HEZAEBEER - A
B25E#REFz=A="+—
BMNALBE=Z1+TBEBEFONHEE
o BRANERRBT.I7E o

32,000,000/% 7T 2 2.5/2 A] #2 f%
BHFEER_ZZTRFENA -+
—HE_EZERFRA-_t+=
HEM1RESHHEAEATHE
B -BE_ZTEEF=ZA=1+
—BIEFERERERETA &L
864,864,864 % % {7 °

RZEERFEFNA=+H ' K
~eHE—RBIREENRIER L
— M EE R EEM??;%
EEBBTN_ZZLF /=
TN\FRHZ2. 577%1&%%
THREBA A& RERZIE
80,000,000/5 7T (9 &AM HtL) °
RZZTEEXE=HA=+—8 -
RZZEZTLFIHH AL B
7%40 000,000/% T 2 2.5[F 7] #2
ES ([E—HEH]) BEBH
WIT - HE_ZEENF_A=
+NABAEL  TEEEREA
RER_ZENFHHEAE B
%8 8% %3 40,000,000/5 T 22.5

EamikEs ([8_#E
7)) - RBEEHZ - -4t

EHZRESKIERBY B
B BHLE I H G R
7 -
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42. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The Tranche 1 Bonds can be converted into ordinary
shares in the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.105
per share, subject to adjustment, at the option of the
bondholders, at any time between the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and 90 days prior to the maturity date
on 28th September, 2007. If the bonds have not been
converted, they will be redeemed on 28th September,
2007 at par. Interest of 2.5% will be paid half yearly in
arrears on 30th June and 31st December in each year.
The effective interest rate is 9.40%.

The Tranche 1 Bonds were fully converted on 8th June,
2006 and 8th November, 2006. A Total of 380,952,380
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
bonds for the year is set out below:

Liability component at the FzEaERD
beginning of the year
Issue of convertible bonds BATRAI R E S
Less: Transaction costs B R AR
Interest charge (note 11) FEFRZ (MaE11)
Interest paid 2 AT A&
Conversion of convertible bonds R ] AR & 5
Liability component at the end FRZBEHD
of the year

The convertible bonds were fully converted during the year
at a conversion price of HK$0.105 per share. A total of
380,952,380 shares were allocated and issued during the
year.

42.

MRRES ()

F—HEHFATIRBERESRK
0.105/8 7t (A] T H%) i 57K
AREEE - EHFFEAARR
BRABRRESFEITEHRES
A (ZE2ZtEF LA+ AN
B) 7790 B A {E ] b ] R EE 4 o
WEHAEER  BIER=F
T+EFNA-T N NHEAREER
O - FB25EENETEZNA
=+tBEt+-A=+—8B&¥*
FUHAZA - BEEFIEE9.40
@ °

E—UESER_ZEZNEAR
ANBEZZEZRF+—AN
&S - 5 380,952,380
IR EIREECOIB TEBMAED
REBEE=ZZTZT+F=A=+—
B IEFE NIRRT -

AEETRBESRESS 2
BBERBIIWT -

2007 2006
HKS$ HK$

BT B TT
36,692,212 -
- 68,564,000

- (4,642,129)
1,070,296 1,825,970
(816,165) (48,903)

(36,946,343)  (29,006,726)

- 36,692,212

AMARR (& 5 1 F W3R & 20.105
BT BEREEEHER - 4
$£380,952,380 % A% 19 1A FF N 1
fig 3% & 1T ©
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43. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1st April, 2005,
31st March, 2006 and 2007

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1st April, 2005

Exercise of convertible
bonds (note a)
Issue of new shares (note b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 31st March, 2006

Exercise of convertible
bonds (note c)

Share repurchased and
cancelled (note d)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 31st March, 2007

TR

R-_ZEZTRFNOA

43.

—H 22 FRK

—EEL+F=H
=t+—HBK@EE
0.018 Lz LB

BEEITRER

R_ZEZERFWNA
—BEREE
0.018 7T 2 & @A

17 Al 2
& & % (i st a)

BT R (B 7ED)

RZEERF=HA
—t+—H®BE®EE
0.01B Lz LB

TR R
B % (M 5Ec)

EEEAC &=
A& 1 (Bt sEd)

R-ZZEZELF=A
=t+t—HERHEE
0.01BTZEBER

g 2
Number of

shares Amount
R EE EE
HK$
B IT
20,000,000,000 200,000,000
1,746,796,604 17,467,966
864,864,864 8,648,649
2,384,932,060 23,849,320
4,996,593,528 49,965,935
380,952,380 3,809,524
(305,564,000) (3,055,640)
5,071,981,908 50,719,819
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43.

—==

TtHE=A=+—RIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year ended

31st March, 2006 were as follows:

(a)

On 22nd April, 2005, HK$32,000,000 of the convertible bonds
was converted into the ordinary shares of the Company.

On 31st May, 2005, arrangement was made for a private
placement to independent private investors of 2,384,932,060
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company held by Broad Idea
International Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, in cash at a price of HK$0.037 per share
representing a discount of approximately 69% to the closing
price of HK$0.12 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 31st May, 2005.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 20th April, 2005,
Broad Idea International Limited subscribed for 2,384,932,060
new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price of
HK$0.037 per share. The proceeds were used to provide
additional working capital for the Company. These new shares
were issued under the general mandate granted to the
directors at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30th May, 2005 and rank pari passu with other shares

in issue in all respects.

43.

B (#)
G

BE_ZZEE-A=+—HILEE
ZEBBRAEFHMT

(a) R-ZZEZTRFHNA=-1+=
B © 32,000,000/ jT 2 A] #
BELSEEBRABARARLE
JS& °

(b) RZEETERFRA=+—
H BERALAREBAARA
* Z X ® Broad Idea
International Limited# & 2
RARAREREMEO.IETZ
2,384,932,0600% i 15 T 18 32
AREBEEIERETH - B8R
{EfEIR£0.037/ 0 » AR
ARGR-_ZETERERA=
+— AR AP AT R Y (E
FRR0.12B TTHTEA69% °

BEAHAE-_SZTREMA
Z+HZREWHZE  Broad
Idea International LimitedA
FR%0.037/%8 T 2 1% (B R EE A
‘A F]2,384,932,0600% & X E
HO0.01B T Z ¥ IRMA © Fifs
FIEE AR AR R A FEIN
LEE® ZFHRMER
BR-_ZTRAFRHA=1+H
BUIZARRIREFIAS
RYTESF2 —MEEET
W E B BEITROES S
EZ4A RS -
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43. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 43. B& (&)
Notes: (continued) MigE :© (&)
The movements of the ordinary share capital for the year ended HE-TZELF=A=+—RHLFE
31st March, 2007 were as follows: ZEBBRAEEMT ¢
(c) On 8th June, 2006 and 8th November, 2006, HK$28,000,000 (c) RZZEZERFAANBEZ
and HK$12,000,000 of the convertible bonds was converted B A i +—A AR

into the ordinary shares of the Company.

(d) During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares (d)

through the Stock Exchange as follows:

No. of ordinary

shares of Price per share
Month of HK$0.01 each BRER
repurchase SREE0.01E T Highest Lowest
Be A 5 ZERROHE BB 543
HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT
August 2006 19,554,000 0.228 0.224
—TZERFENA
September 2006 21,262,000 0.230 0.229
—ETERFNA
October 2006 133,828,000 0.233 0.227
—ETRF+A
January 2007 130,920,000 0.202 0.198
e

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

305,564,000

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then

existing ordinary shares in all respects.

28,000,000/ 1T K&
12,000,000 7t 2 A #2 f% (&
FEEBRARARLER -

F AR R FE B R PR E
REBRMHMT :

Aggregate
consideration paid
B XARE

HK$

T

4,474,286
4,931,919

31,144,320

26,644,366

67,194,891

ot B R B BB B R
5 o

FRARMBETZRORS TEHES
RNEALERNEZAREHA -
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44, SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on
24th April, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”), for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting, the Company adopted the 2002 Scheme,
which will expire on 23rd April, 2011, the Company may
grant options to the eligible persons falling within the
definition prescribed in the 2002 Scheme including
directors, employees and consultants etc. of the Company
or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 21 days from
the offer date. Options granted are exercisable during the
period commencing on the date of grant and expiring on
the date ten years after the date of grant. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time excluding any shares
issued upon the exercise of options granted pursuant to
the 2002 Scheme.

The exercise price per share is determined by the directors
of the Company, and shall be at least the highest of the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant or
the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to an eligible employee under the 2002
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 1% of the aggregate
number of shares issued for the time being and issuable
under the 2002 Scheme.

No share options were granted under the 2002 Scheme
during the two years ended 31st March, 2007.

44.

BRESE

AARR_ZFBFE_FHA= +
mAFRAERESS ([ZFF
—FFE))  XEEEMES
LREEREERHER -

BIBEREFNAS ERBZR
EERARQRARWN_-_ZZT_F
e (BR=_E——FNA =+
=HEw) - $ AIAI A =T

“FEEETEEMZEERA
T (BRARARKENBEARLZ
BEx EEMEES)RLTR
BARARND ZBERE - MK
HEtERERERET

b zEREANIREZBH
BE21IBRERN - IRHZE
BETRRHBHEER LB
HETFERE BBHEA T
TE - IRHZBERESRZ
BHEBERZTBBBARF
ERZEBITRAZ10% @
TEERE-_ZST S0
RO ERETERETZEM
B o

SRTEEDOARNESR
B XBRIARKAARY
WRSMAZKTE  BER
SAMNTEEEARD 2T
50 B A A TR EEZ
REE -

BE—ZZEZ_FETREE
W@A%ﬁ%k%%&&Zk
MBPE  TNEBBIBE =
—iﬁ%*%aﬁﬁ&T%ﬁ
D BEZ1% °

BE_TTLF=A=1+—H
LEMER - YERE-FTT—
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TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

45.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1st April, 2005, the Group increased its interest in
Silver Ascot Limited (“Silver Ascot”) from 33.33% to
66.66%, at a consideration of HK$200,000. Silver Ascot
is engaged in the operation of a medical clinic in Hong
Kong and was previously treated as an associate of the
Group.

On 31st March, 2006, the Group increased its interest in
Pherson Limited (“Pherson”) from 33% to 69%, at a
consideration of HK$990,000. Pherson is engaged in the
property investment and was previously treated as an
associate of the Group.

On 23rd February, 2006, the Group subscribed a
convertible bonds amounting to HK$60,000,000 issued
by Hong Kong Health Check. The convertible bonds, if
converted, will give the Group 55.79% voting power over
Hong Kong Health Check.

Based on the management’s assessment, the current
exercisable convertible bonds of HK$60,000,000 provide
the Group the potential voting rights in Hong Kong Health

45.

YRR B B 2 &

RZEZRFWMA—H » &
ERREARAT(MEE]) 2
# % B 33.33%E MM =
66.66% X & & 200,000/
rc fE ERERBRBLE —H
PE O BAWEEARASE
lZ%ﬁ*é“ o

RZFERF=A=1t—8"
K & E % Pherson Limited
([Pherson)) 2 # 2 F1 33%3%
%£69% * {8 /990,000 7T °
Pherson%ﬁé%%%&ﬁ BAE
BEERAEB ZHERT -

RZEBEZEANF_A=_+=H8 -
AEBRBESRBRETZ
60,000,000/ Jt AJ ¥ J% & 5 o
WERATRRES < ZIKE
BRBE B EEREERS5.79%%

T o

BIEEREREME - BATAI T17T
& 2 60,000,000/ 7T A #2 i% (&
%7,%2!&%%%{ REBERZ

Check which in turn provide the Group the ability to control BERERE  tmAEET]
Hong Kong Health Check. In preparing the consolidated 2z BB gJA N RN ]

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
March, 2006, financial statements of Hong Kong Health
Check were consolidated in accordance to HKAS 27. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
were eliminated on consolidation, including the convertible
bonds. Since the Group has no present equity interest in
Hong Kong Health Check, the results for that year and
the net liabilities of Hong Kong Health Check as at 31st
March, 2006 was allocated to the minority interests.

On 29th September, 2006, the Group increased its interest
in Next Dimension from 40% to 65%, at a consideration
of HK$700,000. Next Dimension is engaged in the
provision of design, promotion, advertising and public
relationship services and was previously treated as an
associate of the Group.

HE—_Z2 F=A=+—H
EFREZHEEMBmEE &
BBV BRRERBEES
anr—'—EJJ%275JT??/m\ Fr & &
BERARIMERS - &8 - WA
RAXREE R - BEA
BMRES - AR AS BRI
ERELEBRESR AR
BAERZEECERERS
TERF_A=+—HZEE
FRNDAEZEDER A= o

RZEEXFALA=+NE -
AEE AR E700,00008 T8 E
FREh e 4% o H 2 HEm B 40%1%
INZE65% - B efReMEZH
ERERE CEE - BEEA
HEBERE  BEHEEARN

£ BEAR -
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Net assets acquired: Frisheg v &= F1E
Investment properties KEMZE

Property, plant and equipment mMZE - BERZE
Prepaid lease payments TE T HE & 5K IR
Inventories e

Trade and other receivables

JFE A2 B K e EL fth B U R IR

Tax recoverable A U @] 7 18
Banks balances and cash RITEHR LIRS

Held for trading investments
Trade and other payables

REEERE

P& 1 PR K e EL fth B A SR IR

Bank overdraft |ITHEX

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Obligations under finance leases g & il 497 42

Loan from minority shareholders L8R Rz 2 B &
Deferred tax liabilities RN IR B &

Minority interests

Interest acquired in prior year
recognised as interest
in an associate

LH PR AES
FFEMKBREER
AR —EBE QT

2

Gooduwill kS

Satisfied by: AR

Cash consideration paid ENBESKE

Related expense paid W B s 2 HRE X
on acquisition

Analysis of net outflow (inflow) ERAWBBRBE LR Z
of cash and cash equivalents Re&kReEEIHEE

in connection with the
acquisition of subsidiaries:

i ORA) FEDT

Cash consideration paid ENBESKE

Bank balances and Fr W B8 SR 1T 45 85 %
cash acquired RE

Bank overdraft acquired Fri B8 RT3 X

Net cash outflow (inflow) in ERYWBHBARZ

respect of the acquisition
of subsidiaries

Bend ORA) FH8

45.

WEEH B DR (F)

2007 2006
HKS$ HK$

7 T BT

- 4,000,000
466,064 678,579
- 1,316,000

- 31,912
2,357,068 702,329
142,908 -
54,054 10,377,136

- 16,170,000
(2,471,804)  (4,856,529)
(144,484) -
- (37,855,531)
(206,849) -
- (200,000)
- (655,628)
196,957  (10,291,732)
(68,935) 12,454,791
(104,507)  (1,232,660)
680,210 261,585
703,725 1,191,984
700,000 1,191,984
3,725 -
703,725 1,191,984
703,725 1,191,984
(54,054)  (10,377,136)
144,484 -
794,155 (9,185,152)

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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45. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Next Dimension is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of its business.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st
March, 2007 contributed HK$7,584,007 (2006:
HK$731,760) to the Group’s turnover and HK$463,146
(2006: loss of HK$731,760) to the Group’s profit for the

year.

Had the acquisitions during the year ended 31st March,
2007 been completed on 1st April, 2006, the Group’s
turnover and profit for the year from continuing operations
would have been HK$279,718,807 and HK$128,879,225,
respectively. This proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
turnover and results of the Group that would actually have
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed on
1st April, 2006, nor is it intended to be a projection of

future results.

Had the acquisitions during the yaer ended 31st March,
2006 been completed on 1st April, 2005, the Group’s
turnover and loss for the year from continuing operations
would have been HK$232,975,762 and HK$24,603,085
respectively. This proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
turnover and results of the Group that would actually have
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed on
1st April, 2005, nor is it intended to be a projection of

future results.

Note: The carrying amount of assets (liabilities) before combination

approximates fair values as at the date of acquisition.

45.

W BB F B A R ()

BB R EELEZHED
BRI B R 2 B A il K
E'Z o

HE—_ZT2tF=A=+—H
EFERKEZHB AR BA
SEZEXEBRASEZFE
i A 5 Bl &5 2k 7,584,007 7T
(ZZFXF : 731,760/ 7T) B
Bi & 463,146 8 L (Z T T A
F : E51E731,7608TT) 2 EE
E1a -

WREE—EE+tF=A=1+
—HLEFEZKEER=-ZZ
NEMA—BRR ' AEEF
NIFECE TS 2 58 M n
%5 Bl 5279,718,80778 7T M
128,879,225 7T © It 5= & K}
EBHEFBZH T EHERER
WRBEN ST NFMA —
B ' NEEBAIEEHRS
ZREEBRES  NTTEREAR
RIRELE 2B -

WM-_ZETZNE=A=+—HIt
FEZWEER-_ZETRFMN
A—HZ=EK  AEEFANEFE
B EXBEREEBE D
Bl A& 232,975,762 T &
24,603,085/ 7t © It = B K
EHRHBPZH T FrERl
WKBEN ST RAFEMNA —
HEMK  AEEGAIREERSG
ZEEBRER  NTEES
RIRELE 2B -

M : AHRBAIZEE (BE)Z
FREEEXNKBRAZAFE
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46.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 46.

As detailed in note 2, the deemed disposal of Hong Kong
Health Check was completed on 3rd October, 2006. The
net assets of Hong Kong Health Check at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Net assets deemed disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment
Deposit paid on acquisition of

BIELEZFEE ¢

KRB X - BB R

property, plant and equipment BEREXN2ES
Held for trading investments BIEEEKRE
Trade and other receivables JE LT B 3R B2 L At JBE WL 3R I8
Bank balances and cash MITER LR E
Trade and other payables JE {1 BR 3R I EL At & 5 3R IE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Convertible bonds Ak E S
Convertible bonds reserve AR ESFFEE
Minority interests LER R =

Net cash outflow of cash and

HBELHETERR

cash equivalents in respect of FAzReRBEEEE

deemed disposal of HE 2REMH

Hong Kong Health Check: HEE

Bank balances and cash BIEHE 2 RIT
deemed disposed of HEr MRS

The subsidiaries deemed disposed of during the year
ended 31st March, 2007 contributed HK$565,857 to the
Group’s turnover and HK$Nil to the Group’s profit for the

year.

RFLEMHE A F

SN B2 B+ AR B
BRRER-BEAETA=
SR R it E B ME SRR
ZBEEMT -

2007
HK$
BT

1,126,366

16,440,000
18,212,718
50,164,068
34,812,882
(4,630,844)
(70,013,775)
(46,049,632)

61,783
(16,062,353)
16,000,570

(34,812,882)

HE_ZT2+tF=A=+—H
IEFERRIELEE 2B R A
RAFERAEE 2 EFEER
NS B 2 % F 9 Bl 75 2k 565,857
BITREBT °
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47.

ACQUISITION OF MEDICAL AND DENTAL
PRACTICES

During the year, the Group acquired two medical and
dental practices at a cash consideration of HK$4,069,000
(2006: HK$11,380,000).

BEEERITELH

RAEE  AEBURSRE
4,069,000/ L (Z T~ F -
11,380,000 JT) Y & 2fH 78 2
MIFEDEAT -

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Net assets acquired: Friiig « EEFE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NERE 50,478 607,772
Inventories = 114,330 325,354
164,808 933,126
Goodwill Bk 3,904,192 10,446,874
4,069,000 11,380,000

Satisfied by: TRHAN

Cash bithc 4,069,000 11,380,000

For the expansion of the Group’s business, the Group
acquired two medical and dental practices with
experienced doctors and nurses. Goodwill is attributable
to the anticipated profitability from these clinics and the
skill and experience of the employees.

The medical and dental practices acquired contributed
HK$6,801,384 (2006: HK$3,563,080) and HK$866,870
(2006: HK$532,135) to the Group’s turnover and profit for
the year, respectively, during the year between the dates
of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

Had the acquisitions during the year ended 31st March,
2007 been completed on 1st April, 2006, the Group’s
turnover and profit for the year from continuing operations
would have been HK$278,634,835 and HK$129,677,931,
respectively. This proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
turnover and results of the Group that would actually have
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed on
1st April, 2006, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

RBRAEE 2 X 7«1»‘%
Yo i 2 TZEEW% = HY B8 A A
& iE’J@ E“‘”Fﬁ Bk
IENuiEﬁﬁﬁZ%ﬁiﬁrmﬂ
7}<$&1E/\ZH ENEER -

%H&E%E,B;ﬁé,%::atir
A ﬁﬁuﬁzﬁéz@ TEZM
ABAEEEHRE %%E&/mﬂ“
7l %5 7€ 6,801,384/ T (Z B E
N £ 3,563,080 ot ) &
866,8708 7T (—Z T Z /X F
532,135%8 7t) B L °

WEE—_ETtF=A=+—
BIEFEZWRBEBER -_ZZT X
FUWA—BEK AEBFR
SEREER T EEBREF
# 5 Bl & 278,634,835 7T &
129,677,9318 7T ° WiEZEE R
EHFAZE T FEfexM
WKEBER ST NEMA —
HEK @ AEBBR EESG
CEEBREL  NTEER
RIRELE ZFBA -
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47. ACQUISITION OF MEDICAL AND DENTAL 47. WEBABRITIEBD M (&)
PRACTICES (Continued)
Had the acquisitions during the year ended 31st March, WEEZZTEEF=A=1+—
2006 been completed on 1st April, 2005, the Group’s AEFEZKREER_ZZTH
turnover and profit for the year from continuing operations FOMA—HAZTK  AEBEFA
would have been HK$236,395,570 and HK$21,062,592 REREEB 2 EEB RN
respectively. This proforma information is for illustrative 1% 5 Bl & 236,395,570 It &
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the 21,062,592/ 7T ° It & &k
turnover and results of the Group that would actually have EBHRHEBACH T —EERE
been impacted had the acquisitions been completed on MEEBER=_ZSZTRFME@A—
1st April, 2005, nor is it intended to be a projection of B ' AEEEAI RS
future results. ZEEERESE  NTREA

RIRFELE 2 TFEA o
48. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 48. RIKEFIGTE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per month, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in Shanghai,
the PRC, are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme in the PRC. The subsidiary is required to
contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contributions are available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of HK$2,582,085 (2006: HK$1,828,220)
represents contributions payable to the above schemes
by the Group during the year.

AEEREEMEARERESR
EITRBMERTEERE S - 5T E
LEERAKEBZEED AR
B XA EEAENZESR
B AEERGEFL AR
MR A% 2 R - &REZEEA
1,000 7T - MEB AIEH FH
TR e

AEERTE LB ZHBARR
ZEETDHEBEREERKE
MEBIKE - ZM B AR AR
FERAZEEADLEHRE
RRAE RSB AR SRR o &R
SEARKRBAMAE 2E—F
EAREZEFH S EH
Koo I MO8 WA AT A AR R
DARKFEENZHR -

RER A W s = 0Bk 2 B AN 42 58
£2,582,085F T (ZEZ X
F 1,828,220/ 7T) * JhIEAR
EBENFAEN LS 2 437

o
NI
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49. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted MEBEME  HE K

for but not provided in the HEBEZBEETHE
financial statements in respect AR BEHwE AN
of the acquisition of property, BiEcERRX

plant and equipment

50. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid FARMELLEHL
under operating leases i+ % (& 76 & I8
in respect of properties

during the year

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum leases payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —& R
In the second to fifth F_EEZERF
year inclusive (BEEREME)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its clinics and office premises.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for a term
ranging from two to five years.

49.

50.

ERARE
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
T BT

2,257,491 38,600,000

REBAN

AEBEHAEA
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
BT B TT

20,846,192 13,062,776

REER  ARERBEAAR
HREROAERAR TS
BB 2 RRKIEHEERA
LI

2007 2006
HK$ HK$
& TT B TT

21,449,806 21,005,651

12,012,521 17,905,353

33,462,327 38,911,004

REBHORBIDEASERHE
ETZRRMAEMERNZ
e BOEFBEECHER
MERFHER -
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50. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
The Group as lessor

During the year, the Group had property rental income of
HK$2,093,800 (2006: HK$737,795).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of premises which would fall
due as follows:

Within one year —& R
In the second to fifth F_EEZERF
year inclusive (BEEREME)

All of the properties held have committed tenants for the
next year.

51. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2007, certain property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group with
the carrying value of HK$994,000 (2006: HK$5,585,000)
and HK$38,125,000 (2006: HK$35,825,000) respectively
and bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2006:
HK$10,000,000) were pledged to secure general bank
facilities granted to the Group.

50.

51.

rRERH (BF)
FEERHBEA

FR - AEEFEYWEEE KA
2,093,800/ 7L (T N F ¢
737,7958 7T) °

REER  AEERDERE
THHEZELEHOQAERAR
THEHE 2 RRRKER
EREWAT -

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

& TT B TT
1,357,800 1,328,400
- 295,050
1,357,800 1,623,450

PIEMERT —FHE AL
AP o

EEEKF
R-ETZ+F=A=+—H "
N £ [ LA BR E B % 5l £994,000
BT (ZEZ/NF : 5,585,000
7 7T) %38,125,0008 7L (=&
TN ¢ 35,825,000/ 70) &
FTAREBYE - BEKZHEA
N&&EWE - A K%10,000,000
Bt (ZEZ/54F 10,000,000
BIT) ZIRITERIERA S B E
Bz —MIBTRLE 2 -
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52.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

Name of related party

BEALER

Kowloon Hearing Services
Limited (note b)
NEEBRBERRA (Fizb)

Specially for you International
Development Limited (note c)

BRRERERERERAF (Hic)

Long Faith International Limited
(note a)
SEERER LR (Hita)

F & T Company Limited (note a)
F & T Company Limited (ff 5 a)

Skin Health and Laser Centre
Limited (note c)

AARERLAERAR (Hatc)

Essential Health Limited (note c)
REBERDA (e

Nature of transactions

REME

Purchase of healthcare products
BERREmM

Consultancy fee paid

XFERE

Management services fee income

EERBEYRA

Management services fee income

EERBEELA

Management services fee income
Consultancy fee paid
EERBERA
XNEHE

Management services fee income

EERBERA

52.

FREAIREREH

TR AEEEAGEEALA

M TIEBERRS :

2007
HK$
i

2,716,873

154,000

853,072

235,200

536,709

502,827

25,039

2006
HK$
BT

1,924,282

374,000

888,082

98,989

560,434

12,720

135,221
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52.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (Continued)

Name of related party
HEALHB

Hope Rich Limited (note a)
EEBRAF (Fta)

Mutual Consultants Limited
(note a)
EIEEBMERAR (Hia)

Best Mega Management Limited
(note a)
Best Mega Management Limited

(Fi3%a)

Bright Top Investment Limited
(note a)

Bright Top Investment Limited
GET)

Advance Bond Limited (note a)

Nature of transactions
RAME

Management services fee income

EERBEYRA

Management services fee income

EEREELA

Management services fee income
EERBERA

Management services fee income

EERBEYRA

Management services fee income

LEER DA (MEa) Consultancy fee income
ERRBERA
BERERA
Hong Kong Health Check (note d) Laboratory fee paid
A ER(WTd) XNERZEE
Notes:
(a) The Group’s former associate/existing associate.

(b) A company in which Mr. Lai Kwok Fai is director and
shareholder. Mr. Lai Kowk Fai is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company, Audio Health Hearing Care

(Shatin) Limited.

(c) A former minority shareholder of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Harmonic Beauty and Body

Slimming Company Limited.

(d) The Group’s deemed associate. Miss Choi Ka Yee, Crystal,
a director of the Company, is also a director of Hong Kong

Health Check.

EREATXRSGRER (B)
2007 2006
HKS HK$
BT BT
960,080 551,275
905,348 18,000
868,400 =
628,133 -
990,561 64,548
401,325 320,700
967,229 -

B 2

AREFBZBEE /BEBEA
=«

BEEELEETEERRR
Z A o B E Sk A RE IR
REARBZHERFREE
BEE(PH ERARZE
=

ARAZFEEMB QAN
AEEEEZAREBERLD
EIPAEY: P (&

AEBEZBIEZHERF
ARREEEHEMIG/NATA
BERRCES -
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52.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

In October 2006, the Group further acquired 25% interest
in Next Dimension from the minority shareholder at a
consideration of HK$700,000.

On 31st March, 2006, the Group entered into an
agreement with Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, who is an executive
director of the Company, to further acquire a 36% interest
in Pherson Limited held by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee at a
consideration of HK$990,000.

In addition, Dr. Cho Kwai Chee issued personal
guarantees to a bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group during the year ended 31st March,
2007 and 2006 at nil consideration.

Details of balance with related parties as at the balance
sheet date are set out in the consolidated balance sheet
and in notes 28, 29, 30, 31, 32 and 38.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

52.

ERBEALRZRER (B)

R_FEAETA  AKE
X {B700,0007% 7 f¢ > Bl R T
R e 1R o T 2 25%78

.
# °

RZEENF=ZA=+—8 -
AEEHARNQNRRAITESTEE
FRBEVHE UWIREKE
990,000/ LB B & & F 28 A A
# A X Pherson Z 36% /% 7 ##

Ng
S o
I

o BEEFEETKREM
—RERITELEAER - EA
AEEREBEE_ZTELER—
ZERF=A=+—"HILFE
ER—MIBITRE 2 -

REEBHEEALERZFE

FNGmeBEERBERRENE
282930 31 32k38°

TEEBABZHM

FRNEENTEETEREHMAK
BsME&mT

2007 2006

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits 52 HIfR A 2,883,749 8,160,692
Post-employment benefits BB ARk 12 218 7F 36,000 36,000
2,919,749 8,196,692

The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEERFETHAEZHMET)

determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or
significant balances with them at the end of the year.

mFMEZE et REARER
MmEBE TUEE -

B EXWEEN  FAMER
MWEBBALTERRS  RFER
MEBEALTE R -
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53.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

On 29th March, 2007, Hong Kong Health Check
entered into an option agreement with Top Act
Group Limited. Pursuant to the option agreement,
Hong Kong Health Check agreed to grant an option
to Top Act at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00.
Pursuant to the option agreement, Top Act shall
be entitled to require Hong Kong Health Check to
issue the Convertible Bonds Il in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$500,000,000 during the
period of one month commencing from the date of
fulfillment of certain conditions, including approval
of independent shareholders in an extraordinary
meeting, the Stock Exchange and Bermuda
Monetary Authority, precedent of the option
agreement. The convertible bonds can be converted
into ordinary shares of Hong Kong Health Check
at a conversion price of HK$0.25.

Details of these are disclosed in an announcement
of the Company dated 11th April, 2007.

On 2nd May, 2007, the Company entered into a
conditional placing agreement with an independent
placing agent for the placing of up to 195,000,000
new shares to the subscribers at the placing price
of HK$0.5412 per placing share. The placement
was completed on 25th May, 2007.

Details of these are disclosed in announcements
of the Company dated 3rd May, 2007 and 25th
May, 2007.

53. HEHRKRER

(a)

RZZEZEEF=A=+
NH  BEEBETop
Act Group Limiteds] 32
—IHERERZE - BE
ZERERE  B5E
BEELA1.008 T2 &R
HBAREE TTop ActiE
Ax#E o 1R 1% 3% I8 A 15
% ' Top ActEREEKE
BN ERERZE
AT RRGES (BRERKR
REASEBIIRKE
& EERIMEAER
ESREERIE) EK
®—(E A HEREITAR
® & | & i A
500,000,000/% 7T 2 7] #&
fEtEZ1 o AR E S A]
#0258 Ly iR (EE
BEEBESER LB

% o

BERFRRERARTR
R-FEZLFOA+—
B2z e

RZEEZLFHAZ
H ARQEE—-—FZBI
& RIBFIZ —HEAE K
HEEEHZE - FMREA
LA & Bz B & % 19 0.5412
B2 BEEERSE
195,000,000/% #1 % &2
EER_ZEZEtHAA
“t+HHTH °

EBEHABEERAA

EG_ZQEtiﬂH:E
—ET+FRA -

ABZAM -
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53.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

On 8th May, 2007 the Company entered into
another conditional placing agreement with an
independent placing agent for the placing of up to
320,000,000 new shares to the subscribers at the
placing price of HK$0.61 per placing share. The
placement was completed on 25th May, 2007.

Details of these are disclosed in announcements
of the Company dated 8th May, 2007 and 25th
May, 2007.

On 15th May, 2007, the Company entered into a
non-binding term sheet in relation to the Group’s
possible acquisition of 51% equity interest in a
number of companies which operate eight existing
Nu/Hart Hair Clinics located in Atlanta, Chicago,
New York, Philadelphia and Pittsburgh in the United
States of America and in Dubai, Manila, and Puerto
Rico for a cash consideration of US$3,225,750
(equivalent to approximately HK$25,161,000),
subject to adjustment.

The Nu/Hart Hair Clinics are principally engaged in
the provision of hair transplant and laser hair re-
growth services.

Details of these are disclosed in an announcement
of the Company dated 16th May, 2007.

558

HEBRSBE(B)

(c)

(d)

R-—ZZEZE+LFHAN
B AAasHE—RET
REREIIVYES—HEHAE
KHREHZE  WRE
A A& IR B2 & A% 19 0.61
BT 2REEEBERES
320,000,0000% %7 i% A2
EER_ZEZLFAHA
“+EHHEZEK °

ERHEBHRERARA
R_ZEE+FHANER
ZETEFRACZT
ERZAM -

R=ZZEZE+FRATH
B ARAFY—MmA
B N & Al BE LA
3,225,750 T (A #H &
725,161,000/ 7T+ AJ
BER R E) 2 IR R E UK
i 2 BLR D Al 51%A% #E
ZH%&%%ﬁZ%%
£ ZELARBERES
)\F'EJQE/\%IEE*%:%
AN ZmE - Ay B
W R C 2 & DA Sl 7 -
e P KR % 22 %5 2 Nu/
Hart Hair Clinics °

Nu/Hart Hair Clinics=3
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54. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 54. ARQRzEERBEBX
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
& T BT
Total assets 18 E E
Interests in subsidiaries NGRS 28,537,379 28,537,379
Held for trading investments HIEEEKRE 6,207,820 5,189,000
Trade and other receivables JiE I BR 53R &
H fib 8 W 3k 3,267,461 2,983,295
Amount due from a subsidiary & U B B A /TQ\ 241,181,119 213,611,484
Amounts due from associates & U 6%*2.*2 IE 2,462,070 1,959,012
Amounts due from JfE U BE B A A) AR
related companies 36,430 -
Pledged bank deposits TEE IR ERIT 17 5K 10,000,000 10,000,000
Bank balances R1THE 34,762,001 36,208,526
326,454,280 298,488,696
Total liabilities wEE
Trade and other payables FESBR R &
H b & A 50T 3,288,611 3,076,461
Amount due to a subsidiary JE T BT B A /TAIE 77,020,104 38,493,082
Amount due to associates JFE {5 Bt & R &) IR 299,120 =
Bank borrowings AR —FANEERE
— due within one year ZBITE R 25,000,000 -
Convertible bonds A #2 I 1B 5 - 36,692,212
105,607,835 78,261,755
220,846,445 220,226,941
Capital and reserves BN fE
Share capital % A5 50,719,819 49,965,935
Reserves & 1 170,126,626 170,261,006
220,846,445 220,226,941

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT



TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERBRAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2007
HE_ZTTLF=A=+—HIFE

54.

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note:

Reserves

At 1st April, 2005
Issue of new shares
Issue of convertible bonds
Share issue expenses
Issue of shares

upon conversion

of convertible bonds
Dividend paid

Loss for the year

At 31st March, 2006

Issue of shares

upon conversion

of convertible bonds
Share repurchased
Profit for the year

At 31st March, 2007

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of HK$350,000 of
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net
asset value of approximately HK$28,530,000 of Town
Health (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation

in April 2000.

The distributable reserve of the Company represents the
amount arising from the reduction of share capital net of

dividend paid.

R R ES B R
S

BERD
0]

R-BE+E
=A=+-H

54. ERAQTRzEERER (&)
Bt 5E
R
Convertible
bonds
Distributable equity
Share Contributed reserve reserve Accumulated
premium surplus SRk ARRES losses Total
IR 43 % 8 BB ®E BnfRE 2RER BE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
148,121,569 28,179,599 72,670,245 - (144,917,002) 104,054,411
64,393,166 - - - - 64,393,166
- - - 3,202,959 - 3,202,959
(4,968,824) - - - - (4,968,824)
21,301,043 - - (942,966) - 20,358,077
- - (9,993,188) - - (9,993,188)
= - - - (6,785,595)  (6,785,595)
228,846,954 28,179,599 62,677,057 2,259,993 (151,702,597) 170,261,006
35,396,812 - - (2,259,993) - 33,136,819
(64,139,251) - - - - (64,139,251)
- - - - 30,868,052 30,868,052
200,104,515 28,179,599 62,677,057 - (120,834,545) 170,126,626

KRB 2 BABERTIEARR A
Ffr 8 17 & i/ X E {5 350,000/%8 7T
B Town Health (BVI) Limited
GEERE—_EETEm AEE
BARBKRMDUE KB R F)
2 & E ¥ 428,530,0007% T

ZER -

ARABZAED KGR
B IRk B X BB 1R 2 B H

BATELZ S8 -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007

HE-FELF=A=T—ALFE

55.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st

March, 2007 are as follows:

Name of company
DNEEH

Audio Health Hearing Care
(Shatin) Limited

RIS I8
(PH)BRRATF

Billion Advance Limited
BEBR AT

Dermatonic Skincare &
Laser Treatment
Centre Limited

First Oriental Cyclotron
Limited

First Oriental Medical
Technology Group
Limited

LEBRRNREE
BRAF

First Oriental Medical
Technology Limited

REERNE
BRAR

Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity
SR LHE
EEERER

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

&/
BRELE R A

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

&/
BRELE R A

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

B/
BRELE R A

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

&/
BRELE R A

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability
company

ABRUEE/
BREARTF

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

B/
BREARTF

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
ERTR
BRRE/

at i iR A&

HK$1,000
1,000 1

HK$100
1007 T

HK$100
1007 T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T

US$1,100
1,100% T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T

55. XEHBRAT

R-FBELF=ZHA=+—HZ
ARAETEWNE A FIEN

™

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
NGIEES P
BRITRE/
iR A
EE LAl
Directly Indirectly
B GE:3

70%

= 70%

= 100%

= 94%

= 51%

= 51%

Principal activities
TEXH

Provision of audio
diagnostic tests and sale
of hearing-aid devices

REEND B R
HENESR

Property investment
services

NERERY

Provision of skincare
and laser treatment
services

REFEEER
Bt e B R

Production of isotopes
for medical uses

TEBRARANLE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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55.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

ACES

Fine Concept Group
Limited

Morning Ray Limited

Next Dimension

Helfem

Nu/Hart Hair Solutions
Limited

ﬁgjﬁ/L\g, EF /L\
ARA

Oriental Elite Limited

Pacific Medical (China)
Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity
AR
HRERERA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability
company

ABRUES/
EREERAF

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

g/
EREAR A

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

B/
BREE R A

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

g/
BREERF

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

B/
BEREART

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

g/
BREERATF

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRATR
BRBRE/

it it R &

HK$1
18 7T

HK$100
1007 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007% 7T

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7t

HK$100
100 7T

HK$100
1007 7T

55. FEMBAE (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
LNGIEES
BRTRE/
it iR A
B Al
Directly Indirectly
EE B &

100%

100%

65%

51%

100%

56.13%

Principal activities

IRER

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of medical
services

RUBERRS

Provision of design,
promotion, advertising
and public relationship
services

RERA  HE BER
REBER

Operating of a hair
transplant centre

HEEESD

Property investments

MERE

Sales of cardiology
and peripheral vascular
related surgical
equipment
HELHNREZNE
BEMFHES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007
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55. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 55. TEMIEAR (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued

Issued and capital/registered
Place of fully paid capital held
incorporation/ share capital/ by the Company
form of registered capital NGRS A
legal entity BERTR BERATRE/
Name of company HEMAIBE/ BRRE/ R A Principal activities
NEAERE HRERERA o R AR A B Al TEXRH
Directly Indirectly
EE B &
Pacific Medical (China) British Virgin Us$2 - 56.13%  Sales of cardiology
Group Company Limited Islands/ 2XTL and peripheral vascular
limited liability related surgical
company equipment
ABREES/ HELHMLREENLE
BEREERATF BB Tl &S
Pacific Medical (Holdings)  British Virgin US$800 - 56.13%  Investment holding
Company Limited Islands/ 8005 T REZER
M EEERERA A limited liability
company
RERAHS/
BREERF
Pacific Medical (Hong Hong Kong/ HK$100 - 56.13%  Sales of cardiology
Kong) Company Limited limited liability 10078 7T and peripheral vascular
company related surgical
B8/ equipment
AREART HELRMLERNE
BB F e
Pherson Limited Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 = 69%  Property investments
limited liability 500,000 7T NERE
company
Bk
BREERF
Silver Ascot Limited Hong Kong/ HK$3 - 66%  Provision of medical
REARAA limited liability 3BT and dental consultation
company services
'R/ RHUERR
BREARTF FRZERS
Spring Biotech Limited British Virgin US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
Islands/ 1570 RE R
limited liability
company
ABRUES/

BREEAH

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED REBRZERERAT
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55.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company
NEAERE

Town Health (Asia) Limited

Town Health Bio-Medical
Technology Limited

REgELY
HRERATF

Town Health (BVI)
Limited

Town Health Children’s
Land Limited

RRTELBY
BRAE

Town Health Dental
Limited
RRTHERAR

Town Health Food and
Beverage Culture
Company Limited

FRARXICARAA

Town Health Management
and Services Limited

REER LR
BRAA

Place of
incorporation/
form of

legal entity
EMK L
HRERRA

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

B/
BREEAR

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability
company

KBRZEHE/
BBREMRA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability
company

EY ) g1
BEREART

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

BB/
BAREEAR

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

&/
BREART

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

BB/
BBREEAR

Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

&/
BREART

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRAR
BERE/
ERA

HK$2
2B L

US$1,000
1,000% T

US$1,331,131
1,331,131% 7T

HK$500,000
500,000/ 1.

HK$2
2BT

HK$2
2B T

HK$2
2BT

55. FEMBAE (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
LNGIESY g
BRTRE/
fit R A&
B Al
Directly Indirectly
E# %

= 100%

100% =

100% =

65%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IRER

Trading of listed
s\equrities
LHESEE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
RERK

Operation of an education
centre
BEHERL

Provision of dental
consultation services

BEREEEH

Catering business
Rt EE RITHRY

Provision of management
and administrative
services

RALE R RITHR

RERK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRMETE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007
BE-TTLF=A=+HILFE

55. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

55.

TEWBELR (B)

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
form of registered capital
legal entity ERTR
Name of company BRI BEREK/
NAERE HRERERA ERA
Town Health Medical & Hong Kong/ HK$2
Dental Services Limited limited liability 28T
FREBERTH company
REERAF g/
AREARTA
Town Health Para-medical  Hong Kong/ HK$2
Services Limited limited liability 28T
FR R B B B RS company
BRAF g/
BREART
Town Health Preventive British Virgin US$1
Healthcare Services Islands/ VT
Limited limited liability
R R BRI RS company
ARAT ABRAHEE/
BEREART
Town Health Traditional Hong Kong/ HK$2
Chinese Medicine limited liability 2B
Services Limited company
B h BR Bk
ARAT BREERF
LRGBS PRC/ US$200,000
BRAR wholly owned 200,0003 7
foreign enterprise
RO
BEME

Proportion
of nominal

value of issued
capital/registered

capital held
by the Company
LNGIESS P
BRTRE/
ERE Principal activities
B TEXRH
Directly Indirectly
EE 4%
- 100%  Provision of medical
services
REBERYE
- 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Trading of listed securities
tTESEE
- 56.13%  Sales of cardiology

and peripheral vascular
related surgical
equipment
HELHMREENE
BB Tl &S

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, results
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

ERINHEERR/EAREEE
BREEREAREZARH
MEBAA  -EFERA JIHE
fil S /B8 2 B) 2 R AR B B S B
BERBERTTE -

&M B A B E R F R A E A
EBTEBEES
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Financial Summary

MBRE

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31st March,
RBZE=A=1+—-HLEE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT T BT
Turnover L 275,628 231,179 179,536 109,717 123,878
Profit (loss) for the year FEEF (FB18) 206,784 21,448 (78,381)  (87,269) 4,884
Attributable to: FE1h -
Equity holders ZINNET &4
of the Company BAA 214,850 20,030 (84,331) (87,669) 4,741
Minority interests DYR R E (8,066) 1,418 5,950 400 143
206,784 21,448 (78,381)  (87,269) 4,884
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEEBERX
At 31st March,
R=B=+—H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BEE 577,946 397,507 177,288 219,727 323,391
Total liabilities BAE (125,760)  (149,002) (41,905)  (25,956)  (68,441)

452,186 248,505

135,383 193,771 254,950

123,414 189,842 254,881
11,969 3,929 69

135,383 193,771 254,950

Assets attributable ARAIRERE A
to equity holders ELEEE
of the Company 436,587 249,155
Minority interests DR R E R 15,599 (650)
452,186 248,505
Note: The above financial summary prior to 31st March, 2004 has not B & -

been adjusted to take into account the effect on the adoption of new
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2005, as the
directors considered that it is not practicable to do so.

HREFRAEEERE » it b
R EF —_TTNF=A=+—H
AT Z BR B I Ve A2 - DARBRER A
HEAGHMAGEMN _TTAF
—A—Ba3zERBZETHBER
ZHBEBMBEREEAZHE -



Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
Shop 37, Level 3, Hilton Plaza Commercial Centre,
3-9 Shatin Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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